
 

  wincoil.gov | Page 1  

 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse  

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor 

 

Thursday, March 28, 2024 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance………………………….…………………………………..John Sweeney 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ................................................................................................ Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation 

A. Awards – None 
B. Presentations – None  
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – None 

 
6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of February 22, 2024 minutes  
B. Layover of March 14, 2024 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda………………………………………………….………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report   
B. Auditor’s Report 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30-day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule) 
 

9. Reports of Standing Committees ………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee ....................................................... John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Adopting Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Policy 
3. Resolution Setting the Salaries and Other Benefits of the County Auditor, County 

Coroner, and County Board Chairman 



wincoil.gov | Page 2  

4. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Reimbursable Technology 
Expenditures to be Laid Over 

5. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 
Entitled Kai McCoy versus Winnebago County 

6. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 
Entitled William James versus Winnebago County 

7. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 
Entitled Eric Beitel versus Winnebago County 
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. SU-02-24 A Special Use Permit for a Wedding and/or Reception Facility (renewal) in 
the AG, Agricultural Priority District for the property that is commonly known as 3013 
W. Rockton Road, Rockton, IL 61072 in Rockton Township, District 2, to be laid over 

2. SU-03-24 A Special Use Permit for a Vacation Rental (renewal) in the AG, Agricultural 
Priority District for the property that is commonly known as 3013 W. Rockton Road, 
Rockton, IL 61072 in Rockton Township, District 2, to be laid over 

3. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee .......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
D. Operations and Administrative Committee ............ Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Awarding Purchase of X-Ray Equipment for Bomb Squad Using CIP 2024 

Funds 
Cost: $59,975 

3. Resolution Awarding Purchase of Vehicles for Coroner’s Office Using CIP 2024 Funds 
Cost: $128,721 

4. Resolution Awarding Replacement of 2nd Floor Air Handlers at Adult Probation Center 
Using CIP 2024 Funds 
Cost: $81,340 

5. Resolution Awarding Replacement of Energy Recovery Ventilation Unit at Adult 
Probation Center Using CIP 2023 PSST Funds 
Cost: $54,530 

6. Resolution Regarding the Emergency Response to the Abandonment of Asylum 
Seekers in Winnebago County 
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. (24-006) Award of Bid for Mowing and Vegetation Control  

Cost:  $ 15,200 (2024), $15,656 (2025)   C.B. District:  County Wide 
3. (24-007) Resolution Declaring as Surplus Highway Department Equipment and 

Authorizing Sale  
Cost:  $ n/a      C.B. District:  N/A 

4. (24-008) Award of Bid for the 2024 County General Letting 



wincoil.gov | Page 3  

Cost:  up to $1,450,000      C.B. District:  County Wide 
5. (24-009) Resolution Authorizing the Appropriation of Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) Funds for 

the Maintenance of County Highways  
Cost:  $ 5,894,000      C.B. District:  County Wide 

6. (24-010) Award of Bid for the 2024 Township Seal Coat Program (Section 24-XX000-01-
GM) 
Cost: $915,113.39 (Misc. Townships’ cost)  C.B. District:  County Wide 

7. (24-011) Award of Bid for Cherry Valley Township and Village of Cherry Valley for the S 
Mulford Rd Resurfacing Project (Section 24-02000-01-gm & 24-00000-00-GM) 
Cost:  $ 319,434.30 (Township & Village Cost)  C.B. District: 11, 12 

8. (24-012) Resolution Authorizing a Phase 1 Engineering Services Agreement with Fehr 
Graham for Owen Center Road from Riverside Boulevard to Latham Road (Section 22-
00712-00-SP) 
Cost:  $378,310      C.B. District:  1, 5 

9. (24-013) Resolution Authorizing a Phase II Engineering Services Agreement with 
Chastain & Associates, LLC for the Improvement of East Riverside Boulevard from 
Material Avenue to Sage Drive (Section 21-00624-00-RS) 
Cost:  $ 747,113.80     C.B. District:  17, 20  

10. (24-014) Resolution Supporting Application to Rehabilitate the Meridian Road Bridge 
Over the Pecatonica River  
Cost:  $00.00      C.B. District:  2 

11. (24-015) Resolution Supporting Application for the Extension of the Baxter Road Water 
Main on the West Side of I-39  
Cost:  $00.00      C.B. District:  11 

12. (24-016) Resolution Supporting an Application to Address Per-And-Polyfluoroalkyl 
Substances (PFAS) Through Connection to Municipal Water Source  
Cost:  $00.00      C.B. District:  9, 12, 18 
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee……………………Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Renewing the Annual Maintenance Agreement for X-Ray Scanners 
3. Resolution Supporting the Application for Funding of an Integrated Case Management 

Platform for the Winnebago County, Illinois Court System 
 

10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ..................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, April 11, 2024 



Awards,  
Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 



Approval of 
Minutes 





















CONSENT 
AGENDA 









Appointments 



Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 



FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Steve Schultz 
Committee:  Finance Committee 
Committee Date: March 21, 2024 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Adopting Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Policy 
County Code:      Not Applicable  
Board Meeting Date: March 28, 2024 

Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted? N/A     Appropriation Amount: 
If not, explain funding source: 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  
Budget Impact: 

Background Information: Annually, County Administration prepares the Budget Policy for the upcoming 
budget year to provide guidance to departments and establish the budget calendar for the County 
Board.  Adjustments to the FY2025 Budget Policy include general formatting and reorganization of the 
policy with the following items amended or added: 

• Updated the calendar dates.

Recommendation: Administration concurs 
Contract/Agreement: Not Applicable 
Legal Review:    Not Applicable 
Follow-Up: Not Applicable 









 

 

 

 

 

 
 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 
Fiscal Year 2025 

Budget Policy 

 
 

 

 
 

 



 

P a g e  2 | 14 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................................. 3 

Accounting Basis................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Budgetary Priorities .............................................................................................................................................................. 4 

Fund Reserves and Balanced Budgets .................................................................................................................................. 4 

Budget Submittal and Presentation Process ........................................................................................................................ 4 

Revenue Estimations ............................................................................................................................................................ 5 

Expense Estimations ............................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Planning and Budgets ................................................................................................. 7 

Budget Amendment Process (After Adoption By The Board): ............................................................................................. 8 

Financial Policies ...................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Fiscal Year ............................................................................................................................................................................. 8 

Accounting/ Auditing............................................................................................................................................................ 8 

Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies ........................................................................................................................ 9 

Grants ................................................................................................................................................................................. 10 

Risk Management ............................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Investment Policy ................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Scope of Investment Policy ................................................................................................................................................ 11 

Objectives ........................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Responsibility ..................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Prudence ............................................................................................................................................................................ 12 

Accounting.......................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Financial Institutions .......................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Investment Vehicles ........................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Collateral ............................................................................................................................................................................ 12 

Security Controls ................................................................................................................................................................ 13 

Adoption ............................................................................................................................................................................. 13 

Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Calendar .......................................................................................................................................... 13 

 

 

 

 

 



 

P a g e  3 | 14 

INTRODUCTION 

Winnebago County Government operates on policies designed to protect the County's assets and taxpayers' 
interests, provide guidance to employees, and serve the public efficiently. It is the intent that the policy 
statements be used to avoid conflicting goals or activities, which may have a negative impact on the overall 
financial position of the County. The County's system of internal accounting controls is designed to provide 
reasonable assurance that the financial records are reliable for preparing financial statements and maintaining 
accountability for assets and obligations. 

The County's budget process is governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (55 ILCS 5/6) and Winnebago County 
Board Policies (Sec. 2-38 Winnebago County Code of Ordinances). All operating funds (those funds that are 
presented in the County’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report) are appropriated in the "Official Budget". 
Appropriations will be considered the maximum authorization to incur obligations and not a mandate to spend. 

In addressing concerns for maintaining financial strength while protecting the interest of the taxpayer, the 
County Board is implementing the following directives for the development of the fiscal year 2025 budget. 

ACCOUNTING BASIS 

Governmental Funds 

The County prepares financial statements based on the modified accrual basis of accounting for all 
governmental funds in which the revenues are recorded when both measurable and available. The County 
considers revenue to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period for 
property taxes, 180 days of the end of the current fiscal policy for certain health department and County 
reimbursable grants and 90 days of the end of the current period for all other amounts. 

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on long-
term debt, claims, judgments, compensated absences and pension expenditures, which are recorded as a fund 
liability when expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources. 

Proprietary Funds 

The County has two proprietary funds. Expenditures for these funds are budgeted on a full accrual basis of 
accounting.  As such, expenses are recognized when incurred and revenues are recognized when they are 
obligated to the County. 

Under both methods of accounting, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) prescribe that purchases 
are required to be accounted for in the fiscal year in which the item is received or the service performed. Items 
ordered or services performed late in the fiscal year and not received or completed by the end of the fiscal year 
will be applied to the budget of the following year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

P a g e  4 | 14 

BUDGETARY PRIORITIES 

 
Direction is hereby given to the County Administrator and the Chief Financial Officer to create the fiscal year 
2025 budget with the following priorities: 

 
1. Debt service payments required 
 
2. Contractual payments based on lease agreements, software agreements and other contractual agreements 
 
3. Mandated services at affordable funding levels 
 
4. All operating necessities (Utilities, IMRF, Health Insurance, Liability Insurance) 
 
5. General operating costs to provide services 
 
6. Non-Union employee compensation 
 
7. Capital needs of the organization 
 
8. Meeting the 25% unrestricted reserve requirement of the General Fund and PSST Fund (See Fund Reserves 

and Balanced Budgets Section) 
 
9. Outside agency funding to include non-obligated Host Fee Grants and local matching grants 

 

FUND RESERVES AND BALANCED BUDGETS 

The intent of the Finance Committee is the budget must balance expenditures against available revenues and 
fund balance by fund. Special revenue fund expenditure budgets cannot exceed available fund balance of the 
fund. Special revenue funds with a negative fund balance will not be allowed to submit an expenditure budget 
until the negative fund balance has been eliminated. 

The County has developed a fund reserve policy in which it shall be the intent of the County Board to maintain 
an unrestricted (total of unassigned) fund balance equal to three months of budgeted operating expenditures 
in the General Fund and the Public Safety Sales Tax Fund. Surpluses in excess of the necessary reserve required 
by this policy shall be transferred to the Capital Projects Fund. In addition, it is the intent of the County Board 
to maintain an unrestricted fund balance equal to three months of budgeted operating expenditures in the River 
Bluff Nursing Home fund. 

 

BUDGET SUBMITTAL AND PRESENTATION PROCESS 

Elected Officials and Department Heads shall be provided budget worksheets with existing levels of funding. 
Based on revenue estimates for the current and next fiscal year, funding levels may be reduced from the current 
year’s appropriations. Elected Officials and Department Heads are encouraged to analyze all services and 
programs for the cost of the programs, citizen demand, and mandates by Federal, State or County law.  



 

P a g e  5 | 14 

Exceptions may be considered by the County Administrator and the Chief Financial Officer on a case-by-case 
basis. 

When an Elected Official/Department Head has completed the required budget forms, a meeting can be 
scheduled (if necessary) with the County Administrator and Chief Financial Officer to review and ensure budget 
policy compliance. Concerns and/or issues should be addressed by the Department Head/Elected Official at this 
time. Any resulting changes to submitted budgets will be communicated to the Finance Office for system entry 
and review. Upon review by County Administrator and Chief Financial Officer, the budget will be scheduled for 
presentation to the Finance Committee per the attached budget calendar. Meetings will be scheduled with the 
Finance Committee (if necessary) for individual departments/Elected Officials to address the Finance 
Committee regarding their individual budget requests. 

Prior to the date the County Board places the budget on layover for public review, the Elected 
Official/Department Head will be required to review the budget as entered in the financial system and sign off 
that all entered information is correct. 

Once the Finance Committee has reviewed departmental budgets, and the recommended supplemental 
requests have been approved, the budget is moved to the whole board to be placed on public display for a 
minimum of fifteen (15) days prior to final approval. 

The Chief Financial Officer and the County Administrator during the normal course of the budget preparation 
process may make budget revisions prior to the final board approval of the budget. It should be noted that 
proposed budget revisions made after the first reading but before final passage shall be documented and 
presented to the County Board for approval as part of the final budget approval. 
 
New for FY2025, Elected Official/Department Heads will be required to submit a five-year plan for capital 
improvements. Guidelines for these budgets are on page 7. 

REVENUE ESTIMATIONS 

The County will project annual revenues on a conservative analytical basis to protect it from short-run 
fluctuations in any one revenue source. In instances where the County is providing non-mandated services and 
the revenue stream(s) is/are not covering the costs of said services, direction will be requested by County 
Administration from the reporting Liaison Committee (and if necessary, the full County Board) on whether said 
service should be allowed to continue and supplemented with County funds. 

Property Tax Assumptions: Winnebago County is mandated to follow the Illinois Property Tax Extension 
Limitation Law (PTELL) by the State of Illinois. PTELL allows governing bodies the ability to cover the costs of 
inflationary increases incurred in their day-to-day operations by increasing their previous year's extension by 
the CPI or 5%, whichever is smallest. For fiscal year 2025 the CPI is 5.0%. During the budget process, County 
Administration will present the increases available if the County Board chooses to capture new growth and/or 
to utilize the CPI increase authorized under PTELL in the calculation of property tax revenues when developing 
the fiscal year 2025 budget. The Finance Committee will inform the Chief Financial Officer of the amount of the 
levy to include in the budget document. 

User Fees and Charges: All user fees and charges should be reviewed by County Administration, Elected Officials 
and Appointed Department Heads on an annual basis to ensure the fee collected is covering the cost of service 
provided (subject to State Statutes). 



 

P a g e  6 | 14 

The County charges user fees for items and services which benefit a specific user more than the general public. 
State statutes or an indirect cost study determines user fees. Fee studies based on costs are conducted as 
needed to determine the level of fees needed to equal the total cost of providing the service. 

Other FY2025 Revenue Assumptions: 

• Nonrecurring (one-time) revenue sources will be used for operations unless directed for a specific use 
by the County Board. 

• Cannabis Sales and Excise Taxes support the General Fund. 
• Gaming-related revenue, including off-track betting, casino, and video gaming revenues, support the 

Capital Projects Fund and County Road Projects using a 50/50 split. 
• Sale of assets support the Capital Projects Fund. 
• New funding sources with a restricted purpose will be reviewed by the County Board to ensure 

appropriate usage at the department level. Additionally, these funding sources will be identified by a 
designated project number to meet reporting requirements by the funding agency. 

EXPENSE ESTIMATIONS 

Salary and Wage Estimates: Each department will be provided a budget document outlining the employees of 
the department with their rate of pay as of the date of the preparation of the document. It is the responsibility 
of the department to review the list including the position titles and employment status (FT, PT or seasonal). 
The department shall budget for any contractual obligations as outlined in respective bargaining contracts for 
the upcoming year. The department should include any vacant positions that are not included on the list if the 
intent is to fill that position in the upcoming year. 

The Finance Committee will provide the County Administrator the non-union employee wage increase rate to 
include in the budget document. The Finance Committee will make a recommendation no later than the 1st 
Finance Committee meeting in June. Non-bargaining employees are eligible to receive the one-percent longevity 
pay in accordance with County policy and this should be included in the development of the salary and wage 
budgets. 

Employees transferring from one County department to another will be allowed to retain their accrued vacation 
upon transfer. The new department will assume the liability should the employee terminate their employment 
while employed by said department. 

Grant Budgets: Each department should submit a separate budget document for ongoing grant awards by the 
project (award) number. Grant revenue estimates should equal grant expenditure estimates for 
reimbursement-based grants. Grant award performance periods may not align with the County’s fiscal year. In 
such cases, the department should estimate to the best of their ability the expenses that will be incurred for the 
grant program during the County’s fiscal year. Grant budgets should include all applicable expenses as defined 
in the grant award and approved grant budget. 

New grant awards will be budgeted at the time the County Board accepts the award. See further details in the 
Grant Policy and Grant Procedures documents. 

 

 

 



 

P a g e  7 | 14 

Other FY2025 Expense Assumptions:  

• In the event of loss of Federal or State funding and/or reimbursement for specific services, it is 
understood that Department/Elected Official will be expected to either reduce funded services or 
identify other reductions/revenue increases to offset the losses. Exceptions will be addressed on a case-
by-case basis. 

• Contractual obligations should be included in the budget request and, if applicable, noted as a 
supplemental request. 

• Equipment needs and repairs that do not meet the criteria of a capital request as defined below should 
be included in the departmental operating budgets. 

• All appropriations that have not been expended or appropriated to ongoing capital improvement 
projects shall lapse at the end of the fiscal year. 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) PLANNING AND BUDGETS 

The CIP budgets are necessary to provide adequate consideration of the County’s short-term and long-term 
needs and strategic goals and evaluate the options and timing availability of funds to address those needs. As 
noted in the Revenue Estimate section of this document, the CIP Fund will be funded through Gaming revenue, 
sale of assets and excess funds in the General and PSST funds. CIP includes major construction, expansion, 
purchase or major repair of buildings and other physical structures.  CIP may also include fleet and equipment 
replacement needs. Per the County asset policy, capital projects should have a component value greater than 
$12,000 and should have a useful life greater than three to five years.  CIP does not include highway 
department projects or equipment funded by grant or other funding sources.   

Each Department Head/Elected Official will submit a list of capital needs for the next five years on the document 
provided for capital requests. Requested projects should be prioritized by the departments. The requesting 
department should note the need for funding of the project. In addition to the cost of completing the project, 
the department should identify any costs to operate and maintain the asset over its useful life. These additional 
expenses would need to be included in the department’s operating budget.  

Only projects included in the first year of the plan will be considered for approval and funding. Projects 
presented for future years are shown for planning purposes only. Funding for a capital plan will be reviewed in 
conjunction with the annual budget. Submittal of capital needs does not guarantee funding.  

Approved CIP projects will be appropriated in the Capital Projects Improvement Fund. County Administration 
has developed a team.  This team will meet regularly to review and discuss the progress of approved projects.  

Capital project appropriations, unlike operating budget appropriations, are typically one-time in nature and the 
project may take multiple years to complete. Budgetary control for these projects will be at the fund and project 
level which differs from operating budgets. Due to the fact that capital projects may cross fiscal years, the 
County Administrator/Chief Financial Officer will have the authority to rollover available project balances to the 
next fiscal year during the budget preparation process. Each previously approved project will be reviewed with 
department heads prior to the calculation of the rollover amount. Factors Administration will consider when 
calculating the rollover amount would include the timing of any remaining payments and estimated completion 
percentage. The current year estimated actuals plus any amounts included in the rollover budget will not exceed 



 

P a g e  8 | 14 

the amount of the original approved project budget. Administration will not rollover any capital project funds 
which have not had activity for two fiscal years. A listing of project budgets that are to be rolled over will be 
reviewed by the aforementioned Administration team and included in the final budget package as presented to 
the County Board. 

CIP appropriations funding projects belonging to the two Enterprise Funds will be budgeted in those respective 
funds in order to properly track assets according to GAAP and financial reporting. Approval of CIP projects 
related to these funds will require a budget amendment including a plan to transfer funds from the CIP fund to 
the Enterprise fund and expenditures for the project in the Enterprise fund. Actual transfers will only be 
recorded by Finance as related projects are completed. 

BUDGET AMENDMENT PROCESS (AFTER ADOPTION BY THE BOARD): 

All requests for budget amendments must start with a completed Budget Amendment Form (available upon 
request from Finance) submitted to the Chief Financial Officer, who upon review, will work with the requesting 
department head in preparing an ordinance (if required) in the County Board approved format for committee 
and board presentation. 

• The County Board must approve all transfers of budgets between departments or funds by a 2/3rd majority 
vote (14) of the County Board. (Transfers may not be made from certain special purpose funds to other 
funds). 
 

• Additional (emergency) appropriations must also be approved by a 2/3rd majority vote (14) of the County 
Board. 
 

• Budgetary control over expenditures exists at the object-class-level (character code). Line item transfers 
between object-class-level (character code) or object codes may be requested by the department and 
approved by the Chief Financial Officer, provided the total amount appropriated by the County Board for 
the respective department (org code) is not exceeded. 
 

FINANCIAL POLICIES 

The following pages include financial policies that have been approved by the County Board. These policies 
should be considered in addition to the Budget Development Guidelines in completion of budgets. 

FISCAL YEAR 

The County's fiscal year is October 1st through September 30th. (Set by County Board per 55 ILCS 5/6-1001). 

ACCOUNTING/ AUDITING 

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants (55 ILCS 5/6-31003). An 
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report shall be prepared according to the criteria set by the Government 
Finance Officers Association (GFOA). The County follows Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as 
set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

 

 



 

P a g e  9 | 14 

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies of the County of Winnebago, Illinois will conform to generally accepted accounting 
principles as applicable to governmental units. The accepted standard- setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles is the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). It shall be the intent of the County to maintain a self-balancing set of accounts on an on- going basis to 
be closed quarterly. The general ledger will be closed by the Finance department no later than 45 days after 
month end. The books shall remain open 90 days after the fiscal year end. 

It shall be the intent of the County to maintain a program of internal controls to safeguard all assets and ensure 
effective and efficient use of all assets. It shall be the responsibility of the Finance Director to establish a formal 
set of "best practice" internal controls. In addition, the County Auditor shall ensure that all departments comply 
with those controls.  

It shall also be the intent for the independent auditor to review the system of internal controls and report any 
weaknesses detected to the Board as part of the annual audit. 

It shall be the intent of the County to utilize fund accounting principles and generally accepted accounting 
practices in the recording of all financial transactions. The general ledger shall be maintained on a cash basis, 
with the intent to move to an accrual basis on a quarterly basis. The Finance Committee will be provided with 
budget versus actual revenue and expenditure reports on a quarterly basis. 

It shall be the intent of the County to prepare annually an Annual Comprehensive Financial Report to be 
presented to the Board no later than 180 days after year-end. The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 
should be audited by an independent CPA firm experienced in governmental auditing. It shall be the further 
intent of the County to present its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report to the Government Finance Officers 
Association to receive the Certificate of Excellence award in financial reporting. If at any time the County will 
not receive an unqualified opinion from the CPA firm, the CPA firm and the Finance Director will notify the Board 
prior to the issuance of the report. 

It shall be the intent of the County to maintain a capital asset ledger of all permanent assets acquired. The 
Finance department will maintain these asset records on an on-going basis to ensure proper controls and report 
annually regarding these records to the Board. No asset will be considered fixed unless its value or component 
value exceeds $12,000 dollars or in the case of infrastructure assets purchased or acquired with an original cost 
of $50,000 or more. 

Depreciation will be charged on all capital assets. This policy is consistent with the requirements of GASB 
Statement No. 34. Depreciation will be recorded on a straight-line basis over the normal useful life of the asset. 

It shall be the intent of the County to manage all accounts receivable. Accounts receivable are created by 
operations in certain departments and offices. In general, they arise at the renewal of a permit or license from 
departments such as Health, River Bluff Nursing Home or Transportation. The department or office that is 
responsible for the billing is responsible for collections and managing receivables. Consistent with good financial 
management, each department and office will age their receivables. Departments and Offices shall continue 
collection efforts. 

The Finance department remits vendor payments on a regular schedule twice a month. Vendor payments are 
released by the County Clerk’s office per the defined schedule. Emergency requests for payment are considered 
on a case-by-case basis. All remittances will be mailed unless there is a business purpose requiring a department 
to obtain the check at which time a release form will need to be signed. 



 

P a g e  10 | 14 

It is the intent of the County to comply with the modified accrual basis of accounting, in which revenues are 
recorded when they are both measurable and available. The County considers revenue to be available if they 
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period for property taxes, 180 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period for certain health department and County reimbursable grants, and 90 days of the end of 
the current fiscal period for all other amounts. 

GRANTS 

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all grant-funded programs or projects are managed according to the 
terms set forth in the grant agreement, Winnebago County Grant Administration Policies and Procedures and 
other applicable County policies and procedures. To inform the County Board of the value of a new grant 
program, the Board must have full knowledge of the total cost and/or impact of the program and its funding 
sources. It is a requirement that departments administrating grants are familiar with the grant administration 
policies and procedures; in addition to individual grant requirements.  

A grant is an amount of money that a government or other institution gives to an individual or to an organization 
for a particular purpose.   

The following should be considered when applying for, accepting, and/or managing grant awards: 

• A new grant is a grant awarded for a purpose that has not been previously supported by grant 
funding. 
 

• Grant Award Agreement Federal/State/Local compliance requirements. 

• If Indirect Costs are allowable, all new grant application budgets should include the County’s 10% de 
minimis indirect cost rate. If not included, the explanation shall be included in the Grant Summary 
Worksheet. 
 

• Departments who apply for grants that require a local match must find the local match within their 
budgets. 
 

• Departments who apply for new grants must understand the special conditions associated with their 
funding and inform the County Board of the conditions in the Resolution, prior to approval. Upon Board 
acceptance and approval, the County Board Administration Staff will log each special condition into the 
Special Conditions System of Register.  

o The County Board’s definition of a conflicting special condition is any special condition of 
funding (outside of standard state/federal conditions) that may prohibit another department’s 
ability to apply for funding.  

 

Departments will submit a budget amendment for new grant awards to the Chief Financial Officer to amend the 
respective budget. A 2/3rd vote of all members constituting the County Board is required to amend department 
budgets to reflect grant revenues and expenses (55 ILCS 5/6-1003).  

• Grants will be controlled at the operating budget level based on the County's fiscal year. 
 



 

P a g e  11 | 14 

• The grant budget will be periodically reviewed by the designated Grant Managers to ensure that the 
revenues and expenditures are consistent with the grant award’s allowable costs.  

• Designated Grant Managers will inform Finance Director of identified sub-award/sub-recipients. 
 

• Grants will be reviewed quarterly, as needed, by the Grant Compliance Officer or Finance Director with 
the Department Head, Elected Official, or designated Grant Managers. 

 

The Chairman is authorized, on behalf of the County Board to execute the renewal, continuation or modification 
of any previously awarded grant, without further Board action.  

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The County has an established program for unemployment, liability and workers compensation. To forecast 
expenditures, the County considers claims, retention levels, fixed costs, and fund reserves. 

 

INVESTMENT POLICY 

The County Treasurer is responsible for the investing of all Winnebago County funds (55 ILCS 5/3-11006). It is 
always prudent for any public unit to have an Investment Policy in place for the purpose of safeguarding funds, 
equitably distributing the investments, and maximizing income of the governmental unit. The following policy 
is adopted for the Winnebago County Treasurer's Office.  

SCOPE OF INVESTMENT POLICY  

This Investment Policy applies to the investment activities of all funds under the jurisdiction of the Winnebago 
County Treasurer. This Investment Policy will also apply to any new funds or temporary funds placed under the 
jurisdiction of the Winnebago County Treasurer. The Illinois Compiled Statutes will take precedence except 
where this policy is more restrictive, wherein this policy will take precedence. 

OBJECTIVES 

The purpose of this Investment Policy of the Winnebago County Treasurer is to establish cash management and 
investment guidelines for the stewardship of public funds under the jurisdiction of the Winnebago County 
Treasurer. The specific objectives of this investment policy will be as follows: 

1. Safety of Principal. 
2. Diversity of investment to avoid unreasonable risks. 
3. The portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating costs, which may be reasonably 

anticipated. 
4. The highest interest rate available will always be the objective of this policy, combined with safety of 

principal. The Winnebago County Treasurer will require full collateralization of any deposits. 
5. In maintaining its investment portfolio, the Winnebago County Treasurer shall avoid any transaction that 

might impair public confidence in the Winnebago County Treasurer's Office. 
6. The Winnebago County Treasurer will give consideration to the financial institutions positive community 

involvement when consideration is given to the financial institution to be used as a depository. 
7. All funds will be invested for a period of one day or longer, depending on the requirement for the 

disbursement of funds. 



 

P a g e  12 | 14 

8. All funds shall be deposited within two working days at prevailing rates or better, in accordance with Illinois 
Compiled Statutes. 

RESPONSIBILITY 

All investment of funds under the control of the Winnebago County Treasurer is the direct responsibility of the 
Winnebago County Treasurer. The Winnebago County Treasurer shall be responsible for all transactions and 
shall establish a system of controls of the activities of all subordinates who are directly involved in the assistance 
of such investment activities.  

PRUDENCE 

The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the" prudent person," and shall be applied 
in the context of managing an overall portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance with written 
procedures and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for any individual securities 
credit risk or market price changes, provided that deviations from expectation are reported in a timely fashion, 
and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. 

ACCOUNTING  

All investment transactions shall be recorded by the Winnebago County Treasurer or the Winnebago County 
Treasurer's staff. A report will be generated, at least monthly, listing all active investments, including 
information regarding securities in portfolio by class or type, book value, interest earned and market value as 
of report date. This report will be made available to the Winnebago County Board and Winnebago County 
Treasurer. 

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS  

The Winnebago County Treasurer will have the sole responsibility to select which financial institutions will be 
depositories for Winnebago County Treasurer funds. The Winnebago County Treasurer will take into 
consideration security, size, location, condition, service, fees and the community relations involvement of the 
financial institution when choosing a financial institution. 

At no time will the Winnebago County Treasurer investments exceed 65% of the financial institution's capital 
and surplus.  

All financial institutions having any type of financial relationships: deposit investments, loans, etc., are required 
to provide a complete and current "Call Report," required by their appropriate regulatory authority each 
calendar quarter within 30 days of the "Call" request date. 

INVESTMENT VEHICLES  

The Winnebago County Treasurer will use investments approved for governmental units as set forth in the most 
current issue of the Illinois Compiled Statutes. 

COLLATERAL  

In order to protect the funds of Winnebago County, it will be a standard practice of the Winnebago County 
Treasurer to require that all deposits in financial institutions be collateralized. Collateral shall be held under the 
name of Winnebago County. During the term of the deposit, at least 102% collateralization will be required 
whenever deposits exceed the insured limits of FDIC. The Winnebago County Treasurer will require a signed 



 

P a g e  13 | 14 

Pledge Agreement between Winnebago County, the Financial Institution, and the Holding Company to be on 
file at all times. 

102% of collateralization of the deposit will be required. Only the following collateral will be accepted: 

• U.S. Government direct securities 
• Obligations of Federal Instrumentalities 
• Obligations of the State of Illinois 
• Obligations of the County of Winnebago 
• Obligations of municipalities located within the County of Winnebago, subject to acceptance by the 

Winnebago County Treasurer 
• Acceptable Collateral as identified in the Illinois Compiled Statutes for use by the Treasurer of the State of 

Illinois 
Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of 
prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but 
for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the possible income to be derived.  

The above standard is established as the standard for professional responsibility and shall be applied in the 
context of managing the Winnebago County Treasurer's portfolio, pursuant to the Public Funds Investment Act 
at 30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 235/2.5 and other provisions included in that Act, along with all other Statutes 
and Constitutional provisions regarding conflicts of interest and ethical considerations. 

SECURITY CONTROLS 

Only the Winnebago County Treasurer is authorized to establish financial accounts for the office of Winnebago 
County Treasurer. At all times either the Winnebago County Treasurer, singly or signatories as designated by 
the Winnebago County Treasurer, should be authorized to sign on financial accounts of the office of the 
Winnebago County Treasurer.  

ADOPTION  

This investment policy or similar policy has been in effect since January 1, 2022. Last revision March 12, 2022. 

 

FISCAL YEAR 2025 BUDGET CALENDAR 

Budget Task Date 

Chief Financial Officer and Finance Department to review budget process, refine budget 
requirements, determine budget calendar and prepare preliminary budget guidelines 

Feb 1st- 
March 1st  

Finance Committee to review Budget Calendar March 7th 

Initial forecast of Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025 with preliminary tax levy options to be 
presented to the Finance Committee   March 7th  

Finance Committee to approve 2025 Budget Policy & Guidelines March 21st  

County Board to approve 2025 Budget Policy & Guidelines March 28th 



 

P a g e  14 | 14 

Budget preparation materials are distributed to departments April 19th-April 
30th  

Departments to submit all budget documents to the Chief Financial Officer May 31st 

Chief Financial Officer and Administrator to review all preliminary budgets with 
Departments June 7th – 14th 

Recommended budgets are provided to Department Heads/Elected Officials June 20th 

Budget to be reviewed by Chairman, Administrator and Chief Financial Officer June 20th 

Budget changes made as needed due to unforeseen items June 21st-July 
18th  

County Administrator to present recommended budget to the Committee of the Whole Aug 8th 

Truth in Taxation Hearing (we will schedule a date if needed)  

Department Heads and Elected Officials sign off sheet on budgets and capital requests 
due in the Finance Department Aug 1st 

Finance Committee to vote on County Budget Ordinance Aug 29th 

County Board to place balanced Proposed Budget on public display Sept 5th 

County Board to adopt the appropriation and tax levy ordinance/budget Sept 26th 

 





WINNEBAGO COUNTY 
Fiscal Year 20254 

Budget Policy 



 

P a g e  2 | 15 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................................. 3 

Accounting Basis................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Budgetary Priorities .............................................................................................................................................................. 4 

Fund Reserves and Balanced Budgets .................................................................................................................................. 4 

Budget Submittal and Presentation Process ........................................................................................................................ 4 

Revenue Estimations ............................................................................................................................................................ 5 

Expense Estimations ............................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Planning and Budgets ................................................................................................. 7 

Budget Amendment Process (After Adoption By The Board): ............................................................................................. 8 

Financial Policies ...................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Fiscal Year ............................................................................................................................................................................. 8 

Accounting/ Auditing............................................................................................................................................................ 8 

Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies ........................................................................................................................ 9 

Grants ................................................................................................................................................................................. 10 

Risk Management ............................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Investment Policy ................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Scope of Investment Policy ................................................................................................................................................ 11 

Objectives ........................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Responsibility ..................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Prudence ............................................................................................................................................................................ 12 

Accounting.......................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Financial Institutions .......................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Investment Vehicles ........................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Collateral ............................................................................................................................................................................ 13 

Security Controls ................................................................................................................................................................ 13 

Adoption ............................................................................................................................................................................. 13 

Fiscal Year 20242025 Budget Calendar .................................................................................................................................. 14 

 

 

 

 



 

P a g e  3 | 15 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

Winnebago County Government operates on policies designed to protect the County's assets and taxpayers' 
interests, provide guidance to employees, and serve the public efficiently. It is the intent that the policy 
statements be used to avoid conflicting goals or activities, which may have a negative impact on the overall 
financial position of the County. The County's system of internal accounting controls is designed to provide 
reasonable assurance that the financial records are reliable for preparing financial statements and maintaining 
accountability for assets and obligations. 

The County's budget process is governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (55 ILCS 5/6) and Winnebago County 
Board Policies (Sec. 2-38 Winnebago County Code of Ordinances). All operating funds (those funds that are 
presented in the County’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report) are appropriated in the "Official Budget". 
Appropriations will be considered the maximum authorization to incur obligations and not a mandate to spend. 

In addressing concerns for maintaining financial strength while protecting the interest of the taxpayer, the 
County Board is implementing the following directives for the development of the fiscal year 20242025 budget. 

ACCOUNTING BASIS 

Governmental Funds 

The County prepares financial statements based on the modified accrual basis of accounting for all 
governmental funds in which the revenues are recorded when both measurable and available. The County 
considers revenue to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period for 
property taxes, 180 days of the end of the current fiscal policy for certain health department and County 
reimbursable grants and 90 days of the end of the current period for all other amounts. 

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on long-
term debt, claims, judgments, compensated absences and pension expenditures, which are recorded as a fund 
liability when expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources. 

Proprietary Funds 

The County has two proprietary funds. Expenditures for these funds are budgeted on a full accrual basis of 
accounting.  As such, expenses are recognized when incurred and revenues are recognized when they are 
obligated to the County. 

Under both methods of accounting, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) prescribe that purchases 
are required to be accounted for in the fiscal year in which the item is received or the service performed. Items 
ordered or services performed late in the fiscal year and not received or completed by the end of the fiscal year 
will be applied to the budget of the following year. 

 

 

 

 



 

P a g e  4 | 15 

 

 

BUDGETARY PRIORITIES 

 
Direction is hereby given to the County Administrator and the Chief Financial Officer to create the fiscal year 
20254 budget with the following priorities: 

 
1. Debt service payments required 
 
2. Contractual payments based on lease agreements, software agreements and other contractual agreements 
 
3. Mandated services at affordable funding levels 
 
4. All operating necessities (Utilities, IMRF, Health Insurance, Liability Insurance) 
 
5. General operating costs to provide services 
 
6. Non-Union employee compensation 
 
7. Capital needs of the organization 
 
8. Meeting the 25% unrestricted reserve requirement of the General Fund and PSST Fund (See Fund Reserves 

and Balanced Budgets Section) 
 
9. Outside agency funding to include non-obligated Host Fee Grants and local matching grants 

 

FUND RESERVES AND BALANCED BUDGETS 

The intent of the Finance Committee is the budget must balance expenditures against available revenues and 
fund balance by fund. Special revenue fund expenditure budgets cannot exceed available fund balance of the 
fund. Special revenue funds with a negative fund balance will not be allowed to submit an expenditure budget 
until the negative fund balance has been eliminated. 

The County has developed a fund reserve policy in which it shall be the intent of the County Board to maintain 
an unrestricted (total of unassigned) fund balance equal to three months of budgeted operating expenditures 
in the General Fund and the Public Safety Sales Tax Fund. Surpluses in excess of the necessary reserve required 
by this policy shall be transferred to the Capital Projects Fund. In addition, it is the intent of the County Board 
to maintain an unrestricted fund balance equal to three months of budgeted operating expenditures in the River 
Bluff Nursing Home fund. 

 

BUDGET SUBMITTAL AND PRESENTATION PROCESS 

Elected Officials and Department Heads shall be provided budget worksheets with existing levels of funding. 
Based on revenue estimates for the current and next fiscal year, funding levels may be reduced from the current 



 

P a g e  5 | 15 

 

year’s appropriations. Elected Officials and Department Heads are encouraged to analyze all services and 
programs for the cost of the programs, citizen demand, and mandates by Federal, State or County law.  

Exceptions may be considered by the County Administrator and the Chief Financial Officer on a case-by-case 
basis. 

When an Elected Official/Department Head has completed the required budget forms, a meeting can be 
scheduled (if necessary) with the County Administrator and Chief Financial Officer to review and ensure budget 
policy compliance. Concerns and/or issues should be addressed by the Department Head/Elected Official at this 
time. Any resulting changes to submitted budgets will be communicated to the Finance Office for system entry 
and review. Upon review by County Administrator and Chief Financial Officer, the budget will be scheduled for 
presentation to the Finance Committee per the attached budget calendar. Meetings will be scheduled with the 
Finance Committee (if necessary) for individual departments/Elected Officials to address the Finance 
Committee regarding their individual budget requests. 

Prior to the date the County Board places the budget on layover for public review, the Elected 
Official/Department Head will be required to review the budget as entered in the financial system and sign off 
that all entered information is correct. 

Once the Finance Committee has reviewed departmental budgets, and the recommended supplemental 
requests have been approved, the budget is moved to the whole board to be placed on public display for a 
minimum of fifteen (15) days prior to final approval. 

The Chief Financial Officer and the County Administrator during the normal course of the budget preparation 
process may make budget revisions prior to the final board approval of the budget. It should be noted that 
proposed budget revisions made after the first reading but before final passage shall be documented and 
presented to the County Board for approval as part of the final budget approval. 
 
New for FY20242025, Elected Official/Department Heads will be required to submit a five-year plan for capital 
improvements. Guidelines for these budgets are on page 7. 

REVENUE ESTIMATIONS 

The County will project annual revenues on a conservative analytical basis to protect it from short-run 
fluctuations in any one revenue source. In instances where the County is providing non-mandated services and 
the revenue stream(s) is/are not covering the costs of said services, direction will be requested by County 
Administration from the reporting Liaison Committee (and if necessary, the full County Board) on whether said 
service should be allowed to continue and supplemented with County funds. 

Property Tax Assumptions: Winnebago County is mandated to follow the Illinois Property Tax Extension 
Limitation Law (PTELL) by the State of Illinois. PTELL allows governing bodies the ability to cover the costs of 
inflationary increases incurred in their day-to-day operations by increasing their previous year's extension by 
the CPI or 5%, whichever is smallest. For fiscal year 20242025 the CPI is 5.0%. During the budget process, County 
Administration will present the increases available if the County Board chooses to capture new growth and/or 
to utilize the CPI increase authorized under PTELL in the calculation of property tax revenues when developing 
the fiscal year 20242025 budget. The Finance Committee will inform the Chief Financial Officer of the amount 
of the levy to include in the budget document. 



 

P a g e  6 | 15 

 

User Fees and Charges: All user fees and charges should be reviewed by County Administration, Elected Officials 
and Appointed Department Heads on an annual basis to ensure the fee collected is covering the cost of service 
provided (subject to State Statutes). 

The County charges user fees for items and services which benefit a specific user more than the general public. 
State statutes or an indirect cost study determines user fees. Fee studies based on costs are conducted as 
needed to determine the level of fees needed to equal the total cost of providing the service. 

Other FY20242025 Revenue Assumptions: 

• Nonrecurring (one-time) revenue sources will be used for operations unless directed for a specific use 
by the County Board. 

• Cannabis Sales and Excise Taxes support the General Fund. 
• Gaming-related revenue, including off-track betting, casino, and video gaming revenues, support the 

Capital Projects Fund and County Road Projects using a 50/50 split. 
• Sale of assets support the Capital Projects Fund. 
• New funding sources with a restricted purpose will be reviewed by the County Board to ensure 

appropriate usage at the department level. Additionally, these funding sources will be identified by a 
designated project number to meet reporting requirements by the funding agency. 

EXPENSE ESTIMATIONS 

Salary and Wage Estimates: Each department will be provided a budget document outlining the employees of 
the department with their rate of pay as of the date of the preparation of the document. It is the responsibility 
of the department to review the list including the position titles and employment status (FT, PT or seasonal). 
The department shall budget for any contractual obligations as outlined in respective bargaining contracts for 
the upcoming year. The department should include any vacant positions that are not included on the list if the 
intent is to fill that position in the upcoming year. 

The Finance Committee will provide the County Administrator the non-union employee wage increase rate to 
include in the budget document. The Finance Committee will make a recommendation no later than the 1st 
Finance Committee meeting in June. Non-bargaining employees are eligible to receive the one-percent longevity 
pay in accordance with County policy and this should be included in the development of the salary and wage 
budgets. 

Employees transferring from one County department to another will be allowed to retain their accrued vacation 
upon transfer. The new department will assume the liability should the employee terminate their employment 
while employed by said department. 

Grant Budgets: Each department should submit a separate budget document for ongoing grant awards by the 
project (award) number. Grant revenue estimates should equal grant expenditure estimates for 
reimbursement-based grants. Grant award performance periods may not align with the County’s fiscal year. In 
such cases, the department should estimate to the best of their ability the expenses that will be incurred for the 
grant program during the County’s fiscal year. Grant budgets should include all applicable expenses as defined 
in the grant award and approved grant budget. 

New grant awards will be budgeted at the time the County Board accepts the award. See further details in the 
Grant Policy and Grant Procedures documents. 



 

P a g e  7 | 15 

 

 

 

Other FY20242025 Expense Assumptions:  

• In the event of loss of Federal or State funding and/or reimbursement for specific services, it is 
understood that Department/Elected Official will be expected to either reduce funded services or 
identify other reductions/revenue increases to offset the losses. Exceptions will be addressed on a case-
by-case basis. 

• Contractual obligations should be included in the budget request and, if applicable, noted as a 
supplemental request. 

• Equipment needs and repairs that do not meet the criteria of a capital request as defined below should 
be included in the departmental operating budgets. 

• All appropriations that have not been expended or appropriated to ongoing capital improvement 
projects shall lapse at the end of the fiscal year. 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) PLANNING AND BUDGETS 

The CIP budgets are necessary to provide adequate consideration of the County’s short-term and long-term 
needs and strategic goals and evaluate the options and timing availability of funds to address those needs. As 
noted in the Revenue Estimate section of this document, the CIP Fund will be funded through Gaming revenue, 
sale of assets and excess funds in the General and PSST funds. CIP includes major construction, expansion, 
purchase or major repair of buildings and other physical structures.  CIP may also include fleet and equipment 
replacement needs. Per the County asset policy, capital projects should have a component value greater than 
$12,000 and should have a useful life greater than three to five years.  CIP does not include highway 
department projects or equipment funded by grant or other funding sources.   

Each Department Head/Elected Official will submit a list of capital needs for the next five years on the document 
provided for capital requests. Requested projects should be prioritized by the departments. The requesting 
department should note the need for funding of the project. In addition to the cost of completing the project, 
the department should identify any costs to operate and maintain the asset over its useful life. These additional 
expenses would need to be included in the department’s operating budget.  

Only projects included in the first year of the plan will be considered for approval and funding. Projects 
presented for future years are shown for planning purposes only. Funding for a capital plan will be reviewed in 
conjunction with the annual budget. Submittal of capital needs does not guarantee funding.  

Approved CIP projects will be appropriated in the Capital Projects Improvement Fund. County Administration 
has developed a team.  This team will meet regularly to review and discuss the progress of approved projects.  

Capital project appropriations, unlike operating budget appropriations, are typically one-time in nature and the 
project may take multiple years to complete. Budgetary control for these projects will be at the fund and project 
level which differs from operating budgets. Due to the fact that capital projects may cross fiscal years, the 
County Administrator/Chief Financial Officer will have the authority to rollover available project balances to the 
next fiscal year during the budget preparation process. Each previously approved project will be reviewed with 



 

P a g e  8 | 15 

 

department heads prior to the calculation of the rollover amount. Factors Administration will consider when 
calculating the rollover amount would include the timing of any remaining payments and estimated completion 
percentage. The current year estimated actuals plus any amounts included in the rollover budget will not exceed 
the amount of the original approved project budget. Administration will not rollover any capital project funds 
which have not had activity for two fiscal years. A listing of project budgets that are to be rolled over will be 
reviewed by the aforementioned Administration team and included in the final budget package as presented to 
the County Board. 

CIP appropriations funding projects belonging to the two Enterprise Funds will be budgeted in those respective 
funds in order to properly track assets according to GAAP and financial reporting. Approval of CIP projects 
related to these funds will require a budget amendment including a plan to transfer funds from the CIP fund to 
the Enterprise fund and expenditures for the project in the Enterprise fund. Actual transfers will only be 
recorded by Finance as related projects are completed. 

BUDGET AMENDMENT PROCESS (AFTER ADOPTION BY THE BOARD): 

All requests for budget amendments must start with a completed Budget Amendment Form (available upon 
request from Finance) submitted to the Chief Financial Officer, who upon review, will work with the requesting 
department head in preparing an ordinance (if required) in the County Board approved format for committee 
and board presentation. 

• The County Board must approve all transfers of budgets between departments or funds by a 2/3rd majority 
vote (14) of the County Board. (Transfers may not be made from certain special purpose funds to other 
funds). 
 

• Additional (emergency) appropriations must also be approved by a 2/3rd majority vote (14) of the County 
Board. 
 

• Budgetary control over expenditures exists at the object-class-level (character code). Line item transfers 
between object-class-level (character code) or object codes may be requested by the department and 
approved by the Chief Financial Officer, provided the total amount appropriated by the County Board for 
the respective department (org code) is not exceeded. 
 

FINANCIAL POLICIES 

The following pages include financial policies that have been approved by the County Board. These policies 
should be considered in addition to the Budget Development Guidelines in completion of budgets. 

FISCAL YEAR 

The County's fiscal year is October 1st through September 30th. (Set by County Board per 55 ILCS 5/6-1-001). 

ACCOUNTING/ AUDITING 

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants (55 ILCS 5/6-31003). An 
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report shall be prepared according to the criteria set by the Government 
Finance Officers Association (GFOA). The County follows Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as 
set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 



 

P a g e  9 | 15 

 

 

 

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies of the County of Winnebago, Illinois will conform to generally accepted accounting 
principles as applicable to governmental units. The accepted standard- setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles is the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). It shall be the intent of the County to maintain a self-balancing set of accounts on an on- going basis to 
be closed quarterly. The general ledger will be closed by the Finance department no later than 45 days after 
month end. The books shall remain open 90 days after the fiscal year end. 

It shall be the intent of the County to maintain a program of internal controls to safeguard all assets and ensure 
effective and efficient use of all assets. It shall be the responsibility of the Finance Director to establish a formal 
set of "best practice" internal controls. In addition, the County Auditor shall ensure that all departments comply 
with those controls.  

It shall also be the intent for the independent auditor to review the system of internal controls and report any 
weaknesses detected to the Board as part of the annual audit. 

It shall be the intent of the County to utilize fund accounting principles and generally accepted accounting 
practices in the recording of all financial transactions. The general ledger shall be maintained on a cash basis, 
with the intent to move to an accrual basis on a quarterly basis. The Finance Committee will be provided with 
budget versus actual revenue and expenditure reports on a quarterly basis. 

It shall be the intent of the County to prepare annually an Annual Comprehensive Financial Report to be 
presented to the Board no later than 180 days after year-end. The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 
should be audited by an independent CPA firm experienced in governmental auditing. It shall be the further 
intent of the County to present its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report to the Government Finance Officers 
Association to receive the Certificate of Excellence award in financial reporting. If at any time the County will 
not receive an unqualified opinion from the CPA firm, the CPA firm and the Finance Director will notify the Board 
prior to the issuance of the report. 

It shall be the intent of the County to maintain a capital asset ledger of all permanent assets acquired. The 
Finance department will maintain these asset records on an on-going basis to ensure proper controls and report 
annually regarding these records to the Board. No asset will be considered fixed unless its value or component 
value exceeds $12,000 dollars or in the case of infrastructure assets purchased or acquired with an original cost 
of $50,000 or more. 

Depreciation will be charged on all capital assets. This policy is consistent with the requirements of GASB 
Statement No. 34. Depreciation will be recorded on a straight-line basis over the normal useful life of the asset. 

It shall be the intent of the County to manage all accounts receivable. Accounts receivable are created by 
operations in certain departments and offices. In general, they arise at the renewal of a permit or license from 
departments such as Health, River Bluff Nursing Home or Transportation. The department or office that is 
responsible for the billing is responsible for collections and managing receivables. Consistent with good financial 
management, each department and office will age their receivables. Departments and Offices shall continue 
collection efforts. 



 

P a g e  10 | 15 

 

The Finance department remits vendor payments on a regular schedule twice a month. Vendor payments are 
released by the County Clerk’s office per the defined schedule. Emergency requests for payment are considered 
on a case-by-case basis. All remittances will be mailed unless there is a business purpose requiring a department 
to obtain the check at which time a release form will need to be signed. 

It is the intent of the County to comply with the modified accrual basis of accounting, in which revenues are 
recorded when they are both measurable and available. The County considers revenue to be available if they 
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period for property taxes, 180 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period for certain health department and County reimbursable grants, and 90 days of the end of 
the current fiscal period for all other amounts. 

GRANTS 

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all grant-funded programs or projects are managed according to the 
terms set forth in the grant agreement, Winnebago County Grant Administration Policies and Procedures and 
other applicable County policies and procedures. To inform the County Board of the value of a new grant 
program, the Board must have full knowledge of the total cost and/or impact of the program and its funding 
sources. It is a requirement that departments administrating grants are familiar with the grant administration 
policies and procedures; in addition to individual grant requirements.  

A grant is an amount of money that a government or other institution gives to an individual or to an organization 
for a particular purpose.   

The following should be considered when applying for, accepting, and/or managing grant awards: 

• A new grant is a grant awarded for a purpose that has not been previously supported by grant 
funding. 
 

• Grant Award Agreement Federal/State/Local compliance requirements. 

• If Indirect Costs are allowable, all new grant application budgets should include the County’s 10% de 
minimis indirect cost rate. If not included, the explanation shall be included in the Grant Summary 
Worksheet. 
 

• Departments who apply for grants that require a local match must find the local match within their 
budgets. 
 

• Departments who apply for new grants must understand the special conditions associated with their 
funding and inform the County Board of the conditions in the Resolution, prior to approval. Upon Board 
acceptance and approval, the County Board Administration Staff will log each special condition into the 
Special Conditions System of Register.  

o The County Board’s definition of a conflicting special condition is any special condition of 
funding (outside of standard state/federal conditions) that may prohibit another department’s 
ability to apply for funding.  

 



 

P a g e  11 | 15 

 

Departments will submit a budget amendment for new grant awards to the Chief Financial Officer to amend the 
respective budget. A 2/3rd vote of all members constituting the County Board is required to amend department 
budgets to reflect grant revenues and expenses (55 ILCS 5/6-1003).  

• Grants will be controlled at the operating budget level based on the County's fiscal year. 
 

• The grant budget will be periodically reviewed by the designated Grant Managers to ensure that the 
revenues and expenditures are consistent with the grant award’s allowable costs.  

• Designated Grant Managers will inform Finance Director of identified sub-award/sub-recipients. 
 

• Grants will be reviewed quarterly, as needed, by the Grant Compliance Officer or Finance Director with 
the Department Head, Elected Official, or designated Grant Managers. 

 

The Chairman is authorized, on behalf of the County Board to execute the renewal, continuation or 
modification of any previously awarded grant, without further Board action.  

•  

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The County has an established program for unemployment, liability and workers compensation. To forecast 
expenditures, the County considers claims, retention levels, fixed costs, and fund reserves. 

 

INVESTMENT POLICY 

The County Treasurer is responsible for the investing of all Winnebago County funds (55 ILCS 5/3-11006). It is 
always prudent for any public unit to have an Investment Policy in place for the purpose of safeguarding funds, 
equitably distributing the investments, and maximizing income of the governmental unit. The following policy 
is adopted for the Winnebago County Treasurer's Office.  

SCOPE OF INVESTMENT POLICY  

This Investment Policy applies to the investment activities of all funds under the jurisdiction of the Winnebago 
County Treasurer. This Investment Policy will also apply to any new funds or temporary funds placed under the 
jurisdiction of the Winnebago County Treasurer. The Illinois Compiled Statutes will take precedence except 
where this policy is more restrictive, wherein this policy will take precedence. 

OBJECTIVES 

The purpose of this Investment Policy of the Winnebago County Treasurer is to establish cash management and 
investment guidelines for the stewardship of public funds under the jurisdiction of the Winnebago County 
Treasurer. The specific objectives of this investment policy will be as follows: 

1. Safety of Principal. 
2. Diversity of investment to avoid unreasonable risks. 
3. The portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating costs, which may be reasonably 

anticipated. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or numbering



 

P a g e  12 | 15 

 

4. The highest interest rate available will always be the objective of this policy, combined with safety of 
principal. The Winnebago County Treasurer will require full collateralization of any deposits. 

5. In maintaining its investment portfolio, the Winnebago County Treasurer shall avoid any transaction that 
might impair public confidence in the Winnebago County Treasurer's Office. 

6. The Winnebago County Treasurer will give consideration to the financial institutions positive community 
involvement when consideration is given to the financial institution to be used as a depository. 

7. All funds will be invested for a period of one day or longer, depending on the requirement for the 
disbursement of funds. 

8. All funds shall be deposited within two working days at prevailing rates or better, in accordance with Illinois 
Compiled Statutes. 

RESPONSIBILITY 

All investment of funds under the control of the Winnebago County Treasurer is the direct responsibility of the 
Winnebago County Treasurer. The Winnebago County Treasurer shall be responsible for all transactions and 
shall establish a system of controls of the activities of all subordinates who are directly involved in the assistance 
of such investment activities.  

PRUDENCE 

The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the" prudent person," and shall be applied 
in the context of managing an overall portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance with written 
procedures and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for any individual securities 
credit risk or market price changes, provided that deviations from expectation are reported in a timely fashion, 
and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. 

ACCOUNTING  

All investment transactions shall be recorded by the Winnebago County Treasurer or the Winnebago County 
Treasurer's staff. A report will be generated, at least monthly, listing all active investments, including 
information regarding securities in portfolio by class or type, book value, interest earned and market value as 
of report date. This report will be made available to the Winnebago County Board and Winnebago County 
Treasurer. 

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS  

The Winnebago County Treasurer will have the sole responsibility to select which financial institutions will be 
depositories for Winnebago County Treasurer funds. The Winnebago County Treasurer will take into 
consideration security, size, location, condition, service, fees and the community relations involvement of the 
financial institution when choosing a financial institution. 

At no time will the Winnebago County Treasurer investments exceed 65% of the financial institution's capital 
and surplus.  

All financial institutions having any type of financial relationships: deposit investments, loans, etc., are required 
to provide a complete and current "Call Report," required by their appropriate regulatory authority each 
calendar quarter within 30 days of the "Call" request date. 

 



 

P a g e  13 | 15 

 

INVESTMENT VEHICLES  

The Winnebago County Treasurer will use investments approved for governmental units as set forth in the most 
current issue of the Illinois Compiled Statutes. 

COLLATERAL  

In order to protect the funds of Winnebago County, it will be a standard practice of the Winnebago County 
Treasurer to require that all deposits in financial institutions be collateralized. Collateral shall be held under the 
name of Winnebago County. During the term of the deposit, at least 102% collateralization will be required 
whenever deposits exceed the insured limits of FDIC. The Winnebago County Treasurer will require a signed 

Pledge Agreement between Winnebago County, the Financial Institution, and the Holding Company to be on 
file at all times. 

102% of collateralization of the deposit will be required. Only the following collateral will be accepted: 

• U.S. Government direct securities 
• Obligations of Federal Instrumentalities 
• Obligations of the State of Illinois 
• Obligations of the County of Winnebago 
• Obligations of municipalities located within the County of Winnebago, subject to acceptance by the 

Winnebago County Treasurer 
• Acceptable Collateral as identified in the Illinois Compiled Statutes for use by the Treasurer of the State of 

Illinois 
Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of 
prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but 
for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the possible income to be derived.  

The above standard is established as the standard for professional responsibility and shall be applied in the 
context of managing the Winnebago County Treasurer's portfolio, pursuant to the Public Funds Investment Act 
at 30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 235/2.5 and other provisions included in that Act, along with all other Statutes 
and Constitutional provisions regarding conflicts of interest and ethical considerations. 

SECURITY CONTROLS 

Only the Winnebago County Treasurer is authorized to establish financial accounts for the office of Winnebago 
County Treasurer. At all times either the Winnebago County Treasurer, singly or signatories as designated by 
the Winnebago County Treasurer, should be authorized to sign on financial accounts of the office of the 
Winnebago County Treasurer.  

ADOPTION  

This investment policy or similar policy has been in effect since January 1, 2022. Last revision March 12, 2022. 

 

 

 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Normal



 

P a g e  14 | 15 

 

FISCAL YEAR 20242025 BUDGET CALENDAR 

Budget Task Date 

Chief Financial Officer and Finance Department to review budget process, refine budget 
requirements, determine budget calendar and prepare preliminary budget guidelines 

Feb 1st- 
to 

March 1st 10th 

Finance Committee to review Budget Calendar  March 716th 

Initial forecast of Fiscal Years 20232024 and 20242025 with preliminary tax levy options 
to be presented to the Finance Committee   

MarchJune 7th 
15th 

Finance Committee to approve 20242025 Budget Policy & Guidelines MarchApril 21st 
6th 

County Board to approve 20242025 Budget Policy & Guidelines MarchApril 
2813th 

Budget preparation materials are distributed to departments AprilMay 19th3rd-
April 30th 3rd 

Departments to submit all budget documents to the Chief Financial Officer MayJune 
3116stth 

Departments to submit Budget & Outcome Goals to the Chief Financial Officer 
 

June 21st 
 

Chief Financial Officer and Administrator to review all preliminary budgets with 
Departments 

June 722thnd – 
1430th 

Recommended budgets are provided to Department Heads/Elected Officials JuneJuly 207th 

Budget to be reviewed by Chairman, Administrator and Chief Financial Officer June 20th 

Budget changes made as needed due to unforeseen itemsFinance Committee will 
review department budget presentations (if necessary) 

 
June 21st-July 
18th July 20th 

 

Budget to be reviewed by Chairman, Administrator and Chief Financial Officer Junely 205th 

County Administrator to present recommended budget to the Committee of the Whole Aug 810th 

Finance Committee to make recommended budget changes (if necessary) Aug 17th 

Truth in Taxation Hearing (we will schedule a date if needed)  

Department Heads and Elected Officials sign off sheet on budgets and capital requests 
due in the Finance Department Aug 123strd 

Finance Committee to vote on County Budget Ordinance Aug 2931thst 

County Board to place balanced Proposed Budget on public display Sept 57th 

Formatted Table

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted Table

Formatted Table

Formatted Table

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted Table



 

P a g e  15 | 15 

 

County Board to adopt the appropriation and tax levy ordinance/budget Sept 268th 

 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By: Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date:  March 21st, 2024 

Resolution Title: Resolution Setting the Salaries and Other Benefits of the County Auditor, 

County Coroner, and County Board Chairman 

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:  March 28th, 2024 

Budget Information:  

Was item budgeted?    No Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source: This will be budgeted in 2025 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:  

Background Information: 
The County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois is required to fix the salaries and 
other benefits to be paid to certain elected officials at least 180 days before the beginning 
of the term of those elected offices whose compensation is to be fixed. The next term of 
office for the County Auditor, County Coroner, and County Board Chairman are scheduled to 
commence on December 1, 2024, and the County Board must fix the compensation for these 
officers on or before June 3, 2024. 

Recommendation: 

Staff has conducted a salary review of similar counties in Illinois (a copy of the report is 
attached). Based on the salary review report, staff recommends the attached ordinance. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable 

Legal Review:  Not Applicable 

Attachments:  County Salary Comparison 
2020 Salary Resolution 



County Board:  March 28, 2024 

RESOLUTION  
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION SETTING THE SALARIES AND OTHER BENEFITS OF THE  
COUNTY AUDITOR, COUNTY CORONER, AND COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois is required to fix the 
salaries and other benefits to be paid to certain elected officials at least 180 days before the 
beginning of the term of those elected offices whose compensation is to be fixed; and  

WHEREAS, the term of office for the County Auditor, County Coroner, and County Board 
Chairman are scheduled to commence on December 1, 2024, and the County Board must fix 
the compensation for these officers on or before June 3, 2024; and  

WHEREAS, no elected officer of any unit of local government may have his or her salary or 
other benefits increased or decreased during the term for which he or she is elected.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the following schedule of salaries be, and the same is, hereby adopted: 

Start Date End Date Salary Stipend 
County Auditor 12/1/2024 11/30/2025 $92,298 plus a COLA*    $6,500** 

12/1/2025 11/30/2026 The salary above plus a 
COLA* 

   $6,500** 

12/1/2026 11/30/2027 The salary above plus a 
COLA* 

   $6,500** 

12/1/2027 11/30/2028 The salary above plus a 
COLA* 

   $6,500** 

County 
Coroner 

12/1/2024 11/30/2025 $98,414 plus a COLA*    $6,500** 

12/1/2025 11/30/2026 The salary above plus a 
COLA* 

   $6,500** 

12/1/2026 11/30/2027 The salary above plus a 
COLA* 

  $6,500** 

12/1/2027 11/30/2028 The salary above plus a 
COLA* 

   $6,500** 



 Start Date End Date Salary Stipend 
County Board 
Chairman 

12/1/2024 11/30/2025 $104,527 plus a COLA* 
and a vehicle for all 
four years 

N/A 

 12/1/2025 11/30/2026 The salary above plus a 
COLA* 

N/A 
 

 12/1/2026 11/30/2027 The salary above plus a 
COLA* 

N/A 

 12/1/2027 11/30/2028 The salary above plus a 
COLA* 

N/A 

* The cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) (shall be based on the most current All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) 
available on November 1st for the year being adjusted) published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, 
not to exceed 4%. 
 
** The annual stipend shall be in addition to, but separate and apart from the salary and shall be paid by 
the Illinois Department of Revenue out of the Personal Property Tax Replacement Fund. [55 ILCS 5/4-
6001 and 55 ILCS 5/4-6002]. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Auditor, County Coroner, and County Board 
Chairman shall be eligible for any Health Plan and shall pay the same cost for individual, 
dependent and retiree health insurance coverage as County employees covered under AFSCME 
Local 473 Collective Bargaining Unit beginning in December 2024.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) (shall be based on the 
most current All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) available on November 1st for the year being 
adjusted) published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, not to exceed 4%. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the annual stipend for the County Auditor and County Coroner 
shall be in addition to, but separate and apart from the salaries and shall be paid by the Illinois 
Department of Revenue out of the Personal Property Tax Replacement Fund. [55 ILCS 5/4-6001 
and 55 ILCS 5/4-6002]. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption, and the compensation shall take effect upon commencement of office of the 
County Auditor, County Coroner, and County Board Chairman after the November 2024 general 
election.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, County Coroner, and 
County Board Chairman. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

 



Recommended Salaries
County Current
Official Salary
Coroner 98,414         
Auditor 92,298         
County Bd Chairman 101,483       

292,195       

2024 Salary Comparison

County Population
Kane 532,403       
Winnebago 282,572       
Peoria 179,179       
DeKalb 104,897       
Boone 53,544         
Ogle 50,634         

62,252 

Coroner
Base Salary

88,214 
95,548 

Cty Bd Chairman
Base Salary

105,328 
92,582 

13,800 
75,766 

Base Salary
88,214 
89,610 
94,210 

N/A
N/A
N/A

94,210 
123,065 

25,000 

Auditor

24,500 
12,550 













County Board Meeting 
May 28, 2020 

 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Submitted by:   Personnel and Policies Committee 
    Finance Committee 
   

2020 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AFFIXING COMPENSATION AND OTHER BENEFITS 
FOR CERTAIN ELECTED COUNTY OFFICIALS 

 
  

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois is required to fix the 
salaries and other benefits to be paid to certain elected officials at least 180 days before the 
beginning of the term of those elected offices whose compensation is to be fixed; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the term of office for the County Auditor, County Coroner, and County Board 
Chairman are scheduled to commence on December 1, 2020, and the County Board must fix the 
compensation for these officers on or before June 3, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, no officer may have his or her salary or other benefits increased or decreased 

during the term for which he or she is elected.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the following schedule of salaries be, and the same is, hereby adopted:   
 
COUNTY AUDITOR 
December 1, 2020 – November 30, 2021 $87,000 
December 1, 2021 – November 30, 2022 $87,000 
December 1, 2022 – November 30, 2023 Above plus cost of living increase up to max of 3% 
December 1, 2023 – November 30, 2024 Above plus cost of living increase up to max of 3% 
 
COUNTY CORONER 
December 1, 2020 – November 30, 2021 $92,765 Plus vehicle 
December 1, 2021 – November 30, 2022 $92,765 Plus vehicle 
December 1, 2022 – November 30, 2023 Above plus cost of living increase up to max of 3% 
December 1, 2023 – November 30, 2024 Above plus cost of living increase up to max of 3% 
 
COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN 
December 1, 2020 – November 30, 2021 $95,658  
December 1, 2021 – November 30, 2022 $95,658  
December 1, 2022 – November 30, 2023 Above plus cost of living increase up to max of 3% 
December 1, 2023 – November 30, 2024 Above plus cost of living increase up to max of 3% 



 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Auditor, County Coroner, and County Board 

Chairman shall be eligible for any Health Plan and shall pay the same cost for individual, 
dependent and retiree health insurance coverage as County employees covered under AFSCME 
Local 473 Collective Bargaining Unit beginning in December 2020. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the cost of living percentage increase shall be based on the 

Consumer Price Index, provided by the State of Illinois Department of Revenue for Property Tax 
Extension Limitation (PTELL). 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 

upon its adoption, and the compensation shall take effect upon commencement of office of the 
County Auditor, County Coroner, County Board Chairman, after the November 2020 general 
election. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 

prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, County Coroner, and 
County Board Chairman. 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
    

Respectfully Submitted, 
 PERSONNEL AND POLICIES COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

DAVID FIDUCCIA, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 DAVID FIDUCCIA, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

DAVID KELLEY 
 
 

 DAVID KELLEY 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD  
 

 DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

JIM WEBSTER  JIM WEBSTER 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

  
 

Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

DAVID FIDUCCIA 
 
 

 DAVID FIDUCCIA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

BURT GERL 
 
 

 BURT GERL 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
 
 
 
 
 



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

  ResExSummary 20.1 version 

Prepared By: Circuit Court – Thomas Jakeway 
Committee: Finance Committee 
Committee Date: March 21, 2024 
Ordinance Title:  Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Reimbursable Technology 
Expenditures    
County Code:  N/A    
Board Meeting Date: March 28, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?     No    Appropriation Amount:   $235,000 
If not, explain funding source:   Pre-Approved State Reimbursement 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:        32000-42290     Budget Impact:   Neutral 

Background Information: 
The Administrative Office of the Illinois Courts (AOIC) is administering a Court Technology 
Modernization Program for court technology needs.   The Court and County were jointly awarded 
specified reimbursable expenses totaling $215,520.18, albeit said amount is fluid as the AOIC 
may adjust the award amount to account for cost increases.  Thus, the total appropriation 
amount is set at $235,000 with express understanding that actual expenses are not to exceed 
those amounts as current or may hereafter be approved for reimbursement by the AOIC. 
Approved goods and services will support operations in the following departments: circuit court, 
court services, jury commission, and self-help center.  

Recommendation:   Good/resources were selected in consultation with the Department of 
Information Technology and Winnebago County Facilities.  

Contract/Agreement: See attached.  

Legal Review:  Not necessary 

Follow-Up:  Process necessary reimbursement paperwork. 



2024 Fiscal Year Finance: March 21, 2024 
Lay Over: March 28, 2024 

Sponsored by:  Final Vote: April 11, 2024 
John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman 

2024 CO 

TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024 and recommends 
its adoption. 

ORDINANCE FOR APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT FOR 
REIMBURSABLE TECHNOLOGY EXPENDITURES 

WHEREAS, preapproved reimbursement funds from the Administrative Office of the 
Illinois Courts have been awarded to the Winnebago County Circuit Court for court technology 
expenses to support operations in the circuit court, court services, jury commission and self-
help center; and 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and 
Appropriations Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024 at its September 28, 
2023 Board Meeting; and 

WHEREAS, 55 ILCS 5/6-1003 (2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act. Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the record 
of the meeting.”  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55 ILCS 5/6-1003 (2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore the 
increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized for 
Amendment #2024-004 Reimbursable Technology Expenditures. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Ordinance to the Office of the Chief Judge, Director 
of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office and County Auditor. 



 
Respectfully Submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                                JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR  

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR  JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



3/18/2024
Circuit Court Thomas Jakeway

32000

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
32000 42290 Other Dept. Supplies $5,000 $0 $5,000 $235,000 $240,000
32000 32240 Revenue ($109,000) $0 ($109,000) ($235,000) ($344,000)

$0 ($104,000)
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

AOIC State Reimbursement

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:
N/A

2024
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

The Administrative Office of the Illinois Courts (AOIC) is administering a Court Technology Modernization Program for court 
technology needs.   The Court and County were jointly awarded specified reimbursable expenses totaling $215,520.18, 
albeit said amount is fluid as the AOIC may adjust the award amount to account for cost increases.  Thus, the total 
appropriation amount is set at $235,000 with express understanding that actual expenses are not to exceed those 
amounts as current or may hereafter be approved for reimbursement by the AOIC.  Approved goods and services will 
support operations in the following departments: circuit court, court service, jury commission, and self-help center. 

N/A

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

2024-004

DEPT. BUDGET NO.FUND#:



Resolu�on Execu�ve Summary

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285 | Fax: (815) 319-4286   

Prepared By:  Tanya Harris 
Committee:    Finance Committee 
Committee Date: March 21, 2024 
Resolution Title:  Resolution authorizing settlement of a claim against the County of Winnebago 
entitled Kai McCoy versus Winnebago County 
Board Meeting Date: March 28, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount: $92,269.93 
If not, explain funding source:    Budget Impact: $92,269.93 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  49400-43535             Tort Judgement Fund/Worker’s Comp Claims 

Background Information:  Settlement for Eric Beitel in the amount of $92,269.93. 

Recommendation:   The Finance Committee, chaired by John Butitta, has reviewed the settlements 
presented to the Board.  The Board is asked to approve this settlement in favor of the Committee’s 
recommendations at its March 28, 2024 meeting. 

Contract/Agreement: 

Legal Review:  Carol Hartline with Williams McCarthy LLP negotiated these settlements on behalf of 
Winnebago County. 

Follow-Up:   N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by: John Butitta, Committee Chairman 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 

KAI MCCOY VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY  

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having a claim asserted against 
it by Kai McCoy for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the Sheriff’s 
Department, and, 

WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claims against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $92,269.93 for the settlement funding 
for his Workers Compensation case; and, 

WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claim entitled Kai McCoy versus County of 
Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by Kai McCoy while in the employment of the Sheriff’s 
Department by payment of the amount of $92,269.93 for the settlement for permanent disability 
for a Workers Compensation case. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution for Kai McCoy in the amount of $92,269.93 
shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                        JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



Resolu�on Execu�ve Summary

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285 | Fax: (815) 319-4286   

Prepared By:  Tanya Harris 
Committee:    Finance Committee 
Committee Date: March 21, 2024 
Resolution Title:  Resolution authorizing settlement of a claim against the County of Winnebago 
entitled William James versus Winnebago County 
Board Meeting Date: March 28, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount: $96,558.44 
If not, explain funding source:    Budget Impact: $96,558.44 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  49400-43535             Tort Judgement Fund/Worker’s Comp Claims 

Background Information:  Settlement for William James in the amount of $96,558.44. 

Recommendation:   The Finance Committee, chaired by John Butitta, has reviewed the settlements 
presented to the Board.  The Board is asked to approve this settlement in favor of the Committee’s 
recommendations at its March 28, 2024 meeting. 

Contract/Agreement: 

Legal Review:  Carol Hartline with Williams McCarthy LLP negotiated these settlements on behalf of 
Winnebago County. 

Follow-Up:   N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by: John Butitta, Committee Chairman 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 
WILLIAM JAMES VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY  

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having a claim asserted against 
it by William James for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the Sheriff’s 
Department, and, 

WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claims against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $96,558.44 for the settlement funding 
for his Workers Compensation case; and, 

WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claim entitled William James versus County 
of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by William James while in the employment of the 
Sheriff’s Department by payment of the amount of $96,558.44 for the settlement for permanent 
disability for a Workers Compensation case. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution for William James in the amount of 
$96,558.44 shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                        JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



Resolu�on Execu�ve Summary

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285 | Fax: (815) 319-4286   

Prepared By:  Tanya Harris 
Committee:    Finance Committee 
Committee Date: March 21, 2024 
Resolution Title:  Resolution authorizing settlement of a claim against the County of Winnebago 
entitled Eric Beitel versus Winnebago County 
Board Meeting Date: March 28, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount: $76,407.13 
If not, explain funding source:    Budget Impact: $76,407.13 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  49400-43535             Tort Judgement Fund/Worker’s Comp Claims 

Background Information:  Settlement for Eric Beitel in the amount of $76,407.13. 

Recommendation:   The Finance Committee, chaired by John Butitta, has reviewed the settlements 
presented to the Board.  The Board is asked to approve this settlement in favor of the Committee’s 
recommendations at its March 28, 2024 meeting. 

Contract/Agreement: 

Legal Review:  Carol Hartline with Williams McCarthy LLP negotiated these settlements on behalf of 
Winnebago County. 

Follow-Up:   N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by: John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
 

 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 

ERIC BEITEL VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY  
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having a claim asserted against 
it by Eric Beitel for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the Sheriff’s 
Department, and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claims against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $76,407.13 for the settlement funding 
for his Workers Compensation case; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claim entitled Eric Beitel versus County of 
Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by Eric Beitel while in the employment of the Sheriff’s 
Department by payment of the amount of $76,407.13 for the settlement for permanent disability 
for a Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution for Eric Beitel in the amount of $76,407.13 
shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 
 

 
 
 
 



2 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

  JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Attachment 
ZONING COMMITTEE 

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
March 28, 2024 

Zoning Committee……….………….......………..……….....…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

  PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

TO BE LAID OVER: 

1. SU-02-24 A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A WEDDING AND/OR RECEPTION FACILITY
(RENEWAL) IN THE AG, AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT requested by Leif and
Tracy Cannell, property owners, for the property that is commonly known as 3013 W. Rockton
Road, Rockton, IL 61072 in Rockton Township.
PIN: 03-15-200-009                                                                                       C.B. District:   2
Lesa Rating: N/A                                        Consistent W/2030 LRMP-Future Map: N/A
ZBA Recommendation:  APPROVAL with ZBA conditions (6-0)
ZC Recommendation:  TBD

2. SU-03-24 A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A VACATION RENTAL (RENEWAL) IN THE
AG, AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT, requested by Leif and Tracy Cannell, property
owners, for the property that is commonly known as 3013 W. Rockton Road, Rockton, IL 61072
in Rockton Township.
PIN: 03-15-200-009                                                                                        C.B. District:   2
Lesa Rating: N/A                                          Consistent W/2030 LRMP-Future Map: N/A
ZBA Recommendation:  APPROVAL with ZBA conditions (6-0)
ZC Recommendation:  TBD 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

3. COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not
intended as an official public notice):

• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA)
meeting is tentatively scheduled for Tuesday, May 14, 2024, at 5:30 p.m. in
Room 303 of the County Administration Building.

• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting is
tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, May 22, 2024, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the
County Administration Building.



OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE

 COMMITTEE 



Resolution Executive Summary 
For ARPA or CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department for Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office 
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: March 21, 2024 
Board Date:  March 28, 2024     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Purchase of X-Ray Equipment for Bomb Squad Using CIP 24 

Funds  

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $60,000 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?   N/A 
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $60,000  
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER   By: $25 
Reason for ARPA or CIP increase?  N/A 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46430-C2403    Descriptor: CIP-Mach/Equip 
Budget Impact? $ 59,975 

Background Information: The Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office has requested the purchase of 
a new portable x-ray system for the Winnebago County Bomb Squad. The addition of this piece 
of equipment will enable the Winnebago County Bomb Squad to quickly get the results of an x-
ray on a suspicious package, backpack, box, etc. It also provides the ability to identify explosive 
and electronic components within the item being investigated. The system chosen is wireless, 
with a connectivity range of over three hundred feet away from the item being x-rayed, the 
image is quickly uploaded to a computer or tablet for immediate evaluation.  

The Purchasing Department went out for IFB#24B-2326, which yielded six (6) Bids, resulting in 
the lowest responsible bid from SharpLogixx, LLC, who offered the SRV X1417 Extreme 3x. 
Includes 2-year system warranty and 1-year battery warranty. 

IFB#24B-2326 was emailed to five (5) suppliers and publicly posted in the Rockford Register 
Star, the County website and national bid site DemandStar. Six (6) bids were received, two (2) 
were deemed non-responsive.  

Recommended By:  Deputy Chief Sean Hughes and Lieutenant Mike Weber 

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing Department will issue a Purchase Order to SharpLogixx, LLC in the 
amount of $59,975. 



County Board Meeting: March 28, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE OF X-RAY EQUIPMENT FOR BOMB SQUAD USING CIP 24 FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and,

WHEREAS, Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office has requested the purchase of a portable
x-ray system using CIP 24 funds; and,

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department went out for IFB#24B-2326; and, 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bid Tab (Resolution Exhibit A) for the 
aforementioned purchase and recommends awarding to:  

SHARPLOGIXX, LLC 
340 NORTH BROADWAY STREET 
GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN 54303 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a Purchase Order 
in the amount of $59,975, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, to SharpLogixx, LLC., 340 
North Broadway Street, Green Bay, WI 54303. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, Administrator, County Sheriff, County Board Office and County Auditor.       



Respectfully Submitted, 
       OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



VENDOR NAME Logos Imaging, Inc. Point Security, Inc. SharpLogixx, LLC. Novo DR, Inc.
Scanna MSC, Inc.
non-responsive

Mistral, Inc.
non-responsive

PURCHASE PRICE $61,644 $66,700 $59,975 $71,000 

ESTIMATED SHIPPING COST $69 $250 $0 $0 

WARRANTY DETAILS
Standard

2 year
Standard

2 year
2 year all components 

1 year batteries

2 year limited, software 
upgrades

1 year batteries

OPTIONS AVAILABLE Generator Additional warranty Extended warranty Mounting option

OPTIONS PRICE $8,779 
$3,750 per year
$18,750 5 year

$2,000 per year $2,000 

BID TAB

Wednesday, February 21, 2024 - 11:30 AM
24B-2326 BOMB SQUAD X-RAY EQUIPMENT FOR WINNEBAGO COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE

Winnebago County Purchasing Department
404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit A



Quote

For

Winnebago County Sheriff's Office Bomb Squad 
650 W. State Street
Rockford IL 61102
815-262-5213
WeberM@wcso-il.us

If you have questions regarding this quotation, contact:
Benjamin C Klein | Marketing and Sales Coordinator | 877-638-3868 ext. 33 | ben.klein@smartrayvision.com

Thank you for your business!

Quantity Part # Item Rate Amount

1 P1417V3X SRV X1417® Extreme 3x: Complete Portable X-Ray 
System including 14”x17” HD Narrow Margin DR Imager, 
Mil-Grade Controller, Advanced Long Range Wireless 
Communications, Wired Communications, Accessories, 
and SmartRayVision EOD Software packed in a custom 
ruggedized shipping case. Includes 2-year system 
warranty and 1-year battery warranty

$63,975.00 $63,975.00

Special One-Time Discount ($4,000.00) ($4,000.00)

Subtotal $59,975.00

U.S. Ground Shipping Included

Total $59,975.00

Notes:

Berry Compliance = Yes
All components are Country of Origin = USA
Lead time = 6-8 Weeks
Terms = Net30
Shipping CONUS only

Purchase orders should be sent to: 
SharpLogixx, LLC
Attn: Robin Pfaff 
rpfaff@sharplogixx.com
340 North Broadway, Suite 355
Green Bay, WI 54303

mailto:ben.klein@smartrayvision.com
dseverson
Highlight

dseverson
Highlight

dseverson
Highlight



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• °F ° ° °

•



Resolution Executive Summary 
For ARPA or CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department for Coroner’s Office  
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: March 21, 2024 
Board Date:  March 28, 2024     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Purchase of Vehicles for Coroner’s Office Using CIP 

24 Funds 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $180,000   
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $180,000 
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER   By: $51,279 
Reason for ARPA or CIP increase?  N/A 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46410-C2406    Descriptor: CIP 24-Automobile 
Budget Impact? $ 128,721 

Background Information: The Winnebago County Coroner’s Office is requesting to replace their existing 
2013 Ford Expedition EL XL and 2013 Ford E-Series Cargo Van using CIP 24 funds. The van being replaced 
presents safety hazards in operation due to design flaws limiting visibility. 

Purchasing obtained three quotes to purchase a 2024 Expedition and 2024 Transit 150 Van (See Resolution 
Exhibit A). Quotes include dealer discounted pricing and government GSA pricing for vehicles. One 
additional quote was obtained for outfitting both vehicles. 

Brad Manning Ford of Dekalb presented the lowest quote for both vehicles (See Resolution Exhibit B). The 
Coroner’s Office would like to order the two vehicles for $115,950 and have both vehicles outfitted for 
$12,771 (Resolution Exhibit C). The vehicles being replaced will be sold by the Purchasing Department on 
govdeals.com when they become available.  Funds from the sales will be submitted to Finance for proper 
disposition. 

Recommended By:  Coroner Jen Muraski and Deputy Coroner Matt Lane  

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing Department will issue Purchase Orders to the four vendors. 



County Board Meeting: March 28, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE OF VEHICLES FOR CORONER’S OFFICE USING CIP 24 FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and,

WHEREAS, Winnebago County Coroner’s Office has requested the purchase of a 2024
Ford Expedition and 2024 Ford Transit 150, fully outfitted, using CIP 24 funds; and, 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department obtained three (3) quotes for each vehicle, 
including quotes with government pricing; and, 

WHEREAS, the Coroner’s Office also obtained quotes for the outfitting of the new 
vehicles, including the removal and installation for reuse of some existing equipment; and, 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the quotes for vehicles and the outfitting for the 
aforementioned purchase and recommends awarding to:  

MULTIPLE VENDORS 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue Purchase Orders 
in the amount of $128,721, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, to Brad Manning Ford, 
402 Manning Drive, Dekalb, Illinois 60115; Charles Brown, DBA Rockford Communications, 720 
Lorden Court, Rockford, Illinois 61104; the Jean Rose Company, PO BOX 1223, Woodstock, 
Illinois 60098; and Cherry Valley Landscape, 7711 Newberg Road, Rockford IL 61108. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, Administrator, County Coroner, County Board Office and County Auditor.        



Respectfully Submitted, 
       OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Coroner's Request Rock River Ford Brad Manning Ford Morrow Brother's Ford

Expedition XLT Max 4x4 67,945$  63,574$  72,977$  
Transit 150 56,463$  52,376$  55,887$  
Outfitting 12,771$  12,771$  12,771$  

137,180$                128,721$  141,635$  

*doesn't incl tax, title -
add $165 each

Outfitting:
8,315$  Charles Brown, DBA Rockford Communications
3,000$   the Jean Rose Company
1,456$  Cherry Valley Landscape

12,771$  

QUOTE TAB
24NB-2330

CORONER'S VEHICLES USING CIP 2024 FUNDS

Purchasing Department  |  404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.gov
Phone: (815) 319- 4380   |  Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit A



Date: 2/26/2024
Salesperson: Eric Kilmer
Manager: Eric Kilmer

FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CUSTOMER   Winnebago County Home Phone :

Address :
404 ELM ST STE 202
ROCKFORD, IL 61101
WINNEBAGO

Work Phone : (815) 319-4386

E-Mail :  Cell Phone : (815) 319-4386

VEHICLE
Stock # : New / Used : New VIN : Mileage:
Vehicle : 2024 Ford Expedition Max Color :

Type : XLT 4dr 4x4

 Market Value Selling Price  62,858.00
 Delivery of paperwork & vehicle  150.00

 63,008.00
 Taxable Fees (Estimated)  35.00
 DealerDoc  358.03
 Non Tax Fees  173.00
 Cash Deposit  .00

 63,574.03

Customer Approval:   Management Approval:  
By signing this authorization form, you certify that the above personal information is correct and accurate, and authorize the release of credit and employment
information. By signing above, I provide to the dealership and its affiliates consent to communicate with me about my vehicle or any future vehicles using electronic,
verbal and written communications including but not limited to eMail, text messaging, SMS, phone calls and direct mail. Terms and Conditions subject to credit approval.
For Information Only. This is not an offer or contract for sale.

 Total Purchase

 Balance

Resolution Exhibit B



Preview Order W100 - K1J 4x4 XLT Max : Order Summary Time of Preview: 02/26/2024 17:50:36 Receipt: 2/2/2024

Dealership Name : Brad Manning Ford, Inc. Sales Code : F41496

Dealer Rep. ERIC KILMER

Customer Name Winnabego cou

Type Fleet

Priority Code E1

Vehicle Line Expedition

Model Year 2024

Order Code W100

Price Level 425

DESCRIPTION

K1J0 EXPEDITION XLT MAX 4X4

TOTAL BASE VEHICLE

AGATE BLACK METALLIC

XLT CLOTH SEATS

BLACK ONYX

EQUIPMENT GROUP 200A

.3.5L ECOBOOST V6 ENGINE

.10SPD AUTO TRANS W/SLCTSHFT

.P275/65R18 A/T TIRES

FORD FLEET SPECIAL ADJUSTMENT

FLR LNERS RW 1&2 W/O CRPET MAT

MSRP

$65590

$65590

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$160

DESCRIPTION

18" MACH ALUM WHL W/PNTD PKTS

PRICE CONCESSION INDICATOR

REMARKS TRAILER

FRONT LICENSE PLATE BRACKET

SPECIAL DEALER ACCOUNT ADJUSTM

SPECIAL FLEET ACCOUNT CREDIT

FUEL CHARGE

NET INVOICE FLEET OPTION (B4A)

PRICED DORA

ADVERTISING ASSESSMENT

DESTINATION & DELIVERY

MSRP

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$1995

MSRP

TOTAL BASE AND OPTIONS $67745

DISCOUNTS NA

TOTAL $67745

ORDERING FIN: QG630  END USER FIN: QG630  PO NUMBER: undefined 

INCENTIVES:

Acc. Code ID: 10  Contract/Ref #: 21-521R  Concession Amount: $-500.00  BID DATE: 06/19/23  STATE: IL 

This order has not been submitted to the order bank.

This is not an invoice.

Resolution Exhibit B



Date: 2/26/2024
Salesperson: Eric Kilmer
Manager: Eric Kilmer

FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CUSTOMER   Winnebago County Home Phone :

Address :
404 ELM ST STE 202
ROCKFORD, IL 61101
WINNEBAGO

Work Phone : (815) 319-4386

E-Mail :  Cell Phone : (815) 319-4386

VEHICLE
Stock # : New / Used : New VIN : Mileage:
Vehicle : 2024 Ford Transit-150 Cargo Color :

Type :

 Market Value Selling Price  51,660.00
 Delivery of paperwork & vehicle  150.00

 51,810.00
 Taxable Fees (Estimated)  35.00
 DealerDoc  358.03
 Non Tax Fees  173.00
 Cash Deposit  .00

 52,376.03

Customer Approval:   Management Approval:  
By signing this authorization form, you certify that the above personal information is correct and accurate, and authorize the release of credit and employment
information. By signing above, I provide to the dealership and its affiliates consent to communicate with me about my vehicle or any future vehicles using electronic,
verbal and written communications including but not limited to eMail, text messaging, SMS, phone calls and direct mail. Terms and Conditions subject to credit approval.
For Information Only. This is not an offer or contract for sale.

 Total Purchase

 Balance

Resolution Exhibit B



Preview Order W100 - E2Y 150 Low Roof Cargo AWD : Order Summary Time of Preview: 02/26/2024
17:51:16 Receipt: 2/26/2024

Dealership Name : Brad Manning Ford, Inc. Sales Code : F41496

Dealer Rep. ERIC KILMER

Customer Name Winnabego cou

Type Fleet

Priority Code E4

Vehicle Line Transit

Model Year 2024

Order Code W100

Price Level 430

DESCRIPTION

E2Y0 T150 LR CARGO AWD

130" WHEELBASE

TOTAL BASE VEHICLE

AGATE BLACK METALLIC

CLOTH

DARK PALAZZO GRAY

PREFERRED EQUIPMENT PKG.101A

.XL TRIM

3.5L PFDI V6 (GAS)

.10-SPEED TRANSMISSION

.235/65R16C BSW ALL-SEASON

3.73 LIMITED SLIP AXLE

JOB #1 ORDER

FORD FLEET SPECIAL ADJUSTMENT

FRONT LICENSE PLATE BRACKET

FIXED WINDOWS-ALL-AROUND

8800# GVWR PACKAGE

50 STATE EMISSIONS

MSRP

$51085

$0

$51085

$200

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$625

$0

$0

DESCRIPTION

MANUAL AIR CONDITIONER

AUX HEAT/AC PREP W/OUT CNTL

PRICE CONCESSION INDICATOR

REMARKS TRAILER

PRIVACY GLASS

INTERIOR UP PACKAGE - CARGO

.VINYL F/R FLOOR COVERING

.2WAY DRV/PASS PALAZZO CLOTH

.SHORT-ARM PWR MIRRORS

.ILLUMINATED SUN VISORS

E-85 FLEX FUEL CAPABLE

SPECIAL DEALER ACCOUNT ADJUSTM

SPECIAL FLEET ACCOUNT CREDIT

FUEL CHARGE

NET INVOICE FLEET OPTION (B4A)

PRICED DORA

ADVERTISING ASSESSMENT

DESTINATION & DELIVERY

MSRP

$0

$100

$0

$0

$500

$1435

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$2095

MSRP

TOTAL BASE AND OPTIONS $56040

DISCOUNTS NA

TOTAL $56040

ORDERING FIN: QG630  END USER FIN: QG630  PO NUMBER: undefined 

INCENTIVES:

Acc. Code ID: 10  Contract/Ref #: 18-612R  Concession Amount: $-600.00  BID DATE: 09/21/23  STATE: IL 

This order has not been submitted to the order bank.

This is not an invoice.

Resolution Exhibit B



Resolution Exhibit C



Resolution Exhibit C



Resolution Exhibit C



Resolution Exhibit C



Resolution Exhibit C



Resolution Executive Summary 
For ARPA or CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department for Facilities 
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: March 21, 2024 
Board Date:  March 28, 2024     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Replacement of 2nd Floor Air Handlers at Adult 

Probation Center Using CIP 24 Funds  

Budget Information 
Budgeted?  YES   Amount Budgeted?  $85,000    CIP 24 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?   N/A 
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $85,000  
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER   By: $3,660  
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46320-C2404 Descriptor: CIP 24 – Building Improvement 
Budget Impact?  $81,340 

Background Information: The 2nd floor air handler at the Adult Probation Center is a Rheem 
with a Trane condensing unit. These units, combined, provide all the cooling needs and some of 
the heating for the 2nd floor. This unit provides 15 tons of mechanical cooling and with a single 
hot water heating coil, tempers the discharge air. The air handler on the 2nd floor was 
manufactured in October of 1987 and the condensing unit on the roof was manufactured in 
February of 1999. The estimated life span of a Rheem air handler is 10-15 years, a Trane 
condensing unit is 15-20 years, and warranties range from 5-20 years. 

Project, IFB#24B-2327, went out for bid February 9, 2024, which yielded five (5) bids with the 
lowest bid received from Ceroni Piping Company at $81,340, per the attached Bid Tab (see 
Resolution Exhibit A). 

The Invitation for Bid was emailed to 46 potential bidders and local suppliers, including Local 23 
Plumbers and Pipefitters and Northern IL Buildings Contractors, and was also publicly advertised 
in the RRStar and on County website. The pre-bid meeting was attended by ten (10) people, 
representing seven (7) vendors, and yielded five (5) Bids. 

Recommended By:  Shawn Franks, Facilities 

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing Department will issue Purchase Order to Ceroni Piping Company in 
the amount of $81,340.   



County Board Meeting: March 28, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION AWARDING REPLACEMENT OF 2ND FLOOR AIR HANDLERS AT ADULT PROBATION CENTER 
USING CIP 24 FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and,

WHEREAS, Adult Probation Center building is in need of replacing the 2nd floor air 
handlers; and, 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department went out for Bid #24B-2327 Replace 2nd Floor 
Air Handlers at Adult Probation Center; and, 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bid Tab (Resolution Exhibit A) for the 
aforementioned project and recommends awarding to:  

CERONI PIPING COMPANY 
770 CERONI ROAD 

CHERRY VALLEY, ILLINOIS 61016 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a County 
Purchase Order for the amount of $81,340, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, to 
Ceroni Piping Company, 7770 Ceroni Road, Cherry Valley, Illinois 61016. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, Facilities Director, County Board Office and County Auditor.   



Respectfully Submitted, 
          OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



VENDOR NAME JOHNSON CONTROLS
CERONI PIPING 

COMPANY
LM SHEETMETAL, INC.

COMPLETE 

MECHANICAL 

SOLUTIONS

MILLER ENGINEERING 

CO.

Price for Parts $71,891 $61,390 $44,450 $72,557 $67,000

Price for Labor $94,118 $19,950 $48,100 $22,594 $30,000

TOTAL PRICE TO COMPLETE PROJECT $166,009 $81,340 $92,550 $95,151 $97,100

LEAD DAYS FOR MATERIALS 20 WKS 4-6 WKS 5 WKS 9 WKS 100 DAYS

NUMBER OF DAYS TO COMPLETE WORK 10 DAYS 14 DAYS 2-3 WKS 15 DAYS 15 DAYS

BID OPENING - MARCH 8, 2024 at 9:30 AM

BID TAB
24B-2327 REPLACE 2ND FLOOR AIR HANDLERS AT ADULT PROBATION CENTER

Winnebago County Purchasing Department

404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit A



Resolution Executive Summary 
For ARPA or CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department for Facilities 
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: March 21, 2024 
Board Date:  March 28, 2024     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Replacement of Energy Recovery Ventilation Unit at 

Adult Probation Center Using CIP 23 PSST Funds  

Budget Information 
Budgeted?  YES   Amount Budgeted?  $75,000  CIP 23 PSST 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?   N/A 
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $75,000  
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER   By: $20,470 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46320-C2327 Descriptor: CIP PSST 23 – Building Improvement 
Budget Impact?  $54,530 

Background Information: The Energy Recovery Ventilation Unit (EVRU) at Adult Probation 
Center no longer has the manufacture information tags. Facilities estimates the manufactured 
date is between 1997-2000. This unit is not currently working due to the inability to get the 
necessary parts, effectively causing the other temperature controlling units in the building to 
work harder to maintain a comfortable temperature. An EVRU provides tempered air to the 
fresh air side of all units in the basement, 1st, 2nd and 3rd floors of the Adult Probation Center. 
The new unit will reduce the winter heating load by 225,000 BTU/hr. and the summer cooling 
load by 180,000 BTU/hr., a savings of roughly $13k annually in natural gas (estimating $.39 per 
therm). 

Invitation for Bid#24B-2338, was published on February 9, 2024, which yielded five (5) bids with 
the lowest bid received from LM Sheetmetal, Inc. at $54,530 per the attached Bid Tab (see 
Resolution Exhibit A). 

The Invitation for Bid was emailed to 46 potential bidders and local suppliers, including Local 23 
Plumbers and Pipefitters and Northern IL Buildings Contractors, and publicly advertised in the 
RRStar and on County website. The pre-bid meeting was attended by ten (10) people, 
representing seven (7) vendors, and yielded five (5) Bids. 

Recommended By:  Shawn Franks, Facilities 

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing Department will issue Purchase Order to LM Sheetmetal, Inc. in the 
amount of $54,530.   



County Board Meeting: March 28, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION AWARDING REPLACEMENT OF ENERGY RECOVERY VENTILATION UNIT AT ADULT 
PROBATION CENTER USING CIP 2023 PSST FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and,

WHEREAS, Adult Probation Center is in need of replacing the non-functioning Energy 
Recovery Ventilation Unit; and, 

WHEREAS, the County went out for Bid #24B-2338 ERVU Replacement at Adult 
Probation Center; and, 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bid Tab (Resolution Exhibit A) for the 
aforementioned purchase and recommends awarding to:  

LM SHEETMETAL, INC. 
6727 ELM AVENUE, 

LOVES PARK, ILLINOIS 61111 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a County 
Purchase Order in the amount of $54,530, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, to LM 
Sheetmetal, Inc., 6727 Elm Avenue, Loves Park, Illinois 61111 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, Facilities Director, County Board Office and County Auditor.   



                             
         Respectfully Submitted, 
          OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



VENDOR NAME
CERONI PIPING 

COMPANY
LM SHEETMETAL, INC.

COMPLETE 

MECHANICAL 

SOLUTIONS

MILLER ENGINEERING 

CO.
JOHNSON CONTROLS

Price for Parts $61,043 $35,500 $51,914 $56,100 $60,937

Price for Labor $37,641 $19,030 $10,868 $11,000 $49,346

TOTAL PRICE TO COMPLETE PROJECT $98,684 $54,530 $62,782 $67,100 $110,283

LEAD DAYS FOR MATERIALS 4-6 WKS 4 WKS 8 WKS 100 DAYS 20 WKS

NUMBER OF DAYS TO COMPLETE WORK 14 DAYS 3-5 DAYS 15 DAYS 10 DAYS 10 DAYS

BID OPENING - MARCH 8, 2024 @ 10:30 AM

BID TAB
24B-2338 ENERGY RECOVERY VENTILATION UNIT AT ADULT PROBATION CENTER

Winnebago County Purchasing Department

404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit A

Highlight



County Board Meeting:  March 28, 2024 

RESOLUTION 
 OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

2024 CR _______ 

AUTHORED BY: PAUL ARENA 

SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

SPONSORED BY: AARON BOOKER, JIM WEBSTER, JOHN GUEVARA, BRAD 
LINDMARK, KEITH MCDONALD, PAUL ARENA, JOHN BUTITTA, JOHN PENNEY, 

KEVIN MCCARTHY, JEAN CROSBY, MICHAEL THOMPSON, JOHN SWEENEY  

RESOLUTION REGARDING THE EMERGENCY RESPONSE TO THE 
ABANDONMENT OF ASYLUM SEEKERS IN WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

WHEREAS, it is widely-reported and apparent that there is an increased influx of foreign 
nationals seeking asylum entering the United States at the U.S.-Mexico border, resulting in a 
humanitarian and security crisis of grave national concern; and 

WHEREAS, the governor of the state of Illinois has signed legislation in relation to immigrants 
and refugees establishing Illinois as the “Most Welcoming State in the Nation” [Governor J.B. 
Pritzker’s press release dated Aug. 2, 2021, entitled “Gov, Pritzker signs legislation further 
establishing Illinois as the Most Welcoming State in the Nation”]; and 

WHEREAS, on August 18, 2023, in response to the number of Asylum Seekers being 
transported to the State of Illinois from the State of Texas with little to no notice, the governor of 
the State of Illinois signed a proclamation declaring all counties in the state as a disaster area,; 
and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the authority established by the disaster declaration, the state of 
Illinois has made resources to assist Asylum Seekers available at the Landing Zone located in the 
City of Chicago; and 

WHEREAS, on January 21, 2024, the Illinois Emergency Management Agency-Office of 
Homeland Security (IEMA-OHS) approved the Response Planning Guide for Uncoordinated 
Asylum Seeker Arrivals, providing guidance to units of government for the “Onward 
Movement” of Asylum Seekers to the landing zone in the City of Chicago; and 

WHEREAS, for the purposes of this Resolution, the term “Asylum Seekers” shall be in reference 
to individuals addressed by the Governor’s disaster declaration and the IEMA-OHS plan; and  

WHEREAS, the Supreme Court of the United States has long held that “the authority to control 
immigration—to admit or exclude aliens—is vested solely in the Federal government.” Truax v. 
Raich, 239 U.S. 33, 42 (1915); and 



WHEREAS, the state of Texas and state of Missouri unsuccessfully challenged the current 
presidential administration’s Department of Homeland Security decision of June 1, 2021, which 
had officially terminated the Asylum Seeker Protection Protocols that had been initiated under 
the prior presidential administration [See, Biden v. Texas, 597 U.S. 785 (2022)]; and 

WHEREAS, the state of Texas recently passed legislation to allow state police to arrest Asylum 
Seekers who cross the border into Texas unlawfully, and the state was thereafter promptly sued 
by the United States Department of Justice to enjoin enforcement of the law. [See U.S. 
Department of Justice sues Texas over Immigration Law, by Kanishka Singh, Reuters, Jan. 3, 
2024]; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago (“Winnebago County” or “County”) acknowledges that 
the authority to regulate immigration lies solely with the Federal Government and that neither the 
state of Illinois nor the County has authority to regulate or restrict immigration. 
 
WHEREAS, the volume of Asylum Seekers transported by the state of Texas to Illinois and 
particularly in the nearby Chicagoland area, to the state of New York, and elsewhere, is 
reportedly overwhelming social service agencies and straining community resources; and 
 
WHEREAS, the state of Texas has transported Asylum Seekers to the state of Illinois by way of 
the Chicago Rockford International Airport, with a final drop-off to the Landing Zone in 
Chicago; and 
 
WHEREAS, Winnebago County, Illinois joins with other communities that are concerned with 
the lack of a Federal comprehensive plan to provide for and administer services and critical 
assistance to Asylum Seekers; and 
 
WHERAS, non-home rule counties are only granted powers by virtue of state law and must 
operate within the confines of express or implied authority given to them by the state; and 
 
WHEREAS, Winnebago County, while empathetic to the plight of Asylum Seekers, does not 
have sufficient resources nor the authority to expend resources to provide for the long-term 
housing, medical or other critical needs of Asylum Seekers in Winnebago County during this 
humanitarian crisis; and 
 
WHEREAS, the transportation of Asylum Seekers from the state of Texas to the state of Illinois 
has been without coordination between the two states, which raises the possibility of Asylum 
Seekers being abandoned away from the Landing Zone in the city of Chicago; and 
 
WHERAS, Winnebago County has determined that the abandonment of Asylum Seekers would 
constitute an emergency situation that may threaten the health and safety of those Asylum 
Seekers abandoned; and 
 
WHEREAS, Winnebago County has the authority to respond to emergency situations within the 
County and to expend resources in response to emergency situations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the obligation to control immigration lies with the federal government, and the 
status of Illinois as the “Most Welcoming State in the Nation” has been established by State 



government, therefore; the costs associated with the arrival of Asylum Seekers into Illinois 
should be borne by State and Federal government; and 
 
WHEREAS, Winnebago County has determined that it will not utilize its taxpayer-funded 
reserves, including any available monies in its emergency fund, for long term housing, medical, 
or other needs of Asylum Seekers, except that the County may, within its discretion, and subject 
to further Board action, specifically in the case of an emergency situation where Asylum Seekers 
are abandoned in Winnebago County and without means of transportation to the landing zone in 
Chicago, utilize any available general fund monies that were allocated for incidental, contingent 
or miscellaneous expenditures under 55 ILCS 5/6-1002(e) and the County’s Purchasing 
Ordinance, provided that such expenditures are related to costs for transportation to the landing 
zone in Chicago and the essential care of Asylum Seekers during the emergency; and  
 
WHEREAS, nothing in this Resolution shall be construed to prohibit the County from seeking 
reimbursement, such as state or federal funding, to recover funds used to address the needs of 
Asylum Seeker during an emergency; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County wishes to continue dialogue with state, federal and local governmental 
officials, and other community leaders, to attempt to find solutions to address this humanitarian 
crisis; and 
 
WHEREAS, Winnebago County urges President Biden to exercise all options under his current 
authority to control the volume of Asylum Seekers into the United States; and 
 
WHEREAS, Winnebago County urges our members of Congress to reform immigration policy 
to address the volume of asylum seekers coming into the United States; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, the County will not utilize its taxpayer-funded reserves, including any available monies 
in its emergency fund, for long term housing, medical, or other needs of Asylum Seekers, except 
that the County may, within its discretion, and subject to further Board action, specifically in the 
case of an emergency situation where Asylum Seekers are abandoned in Winnebago County and 
without means of transportation to the landing zone in Chicago, utilize any available general 
fund monies that were allocated for incidental, contingent or miscellaneous expenditures under 
55 ILCS 5/6-1002(e) and the County’s Purchasing Ordinance, provided that such expenditures 
are related to costs for transportation to the landing zone in Chicago and the essential care of 
Asylum Seekers during the emergency; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County will continue dialogue with state, federal and 
local governmental officials, and other community leaders, to attempt to find solutions to address 
this humanitarian crisis.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon 
its adoption. 

 
 
 
 



Respectfully submitted, 
OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 
 
  AGREE     DISAGREE 
 
 
__________________________________       __________________________________  
Keith McDonald, Chairman                              Keith McDonald, Chairman 
 
_________________________________         __________________________________ 
Valerie Hanserd, Vice Chair      Valerie Hanserd, Vice Chair 
 
_________________________________         __________________________________ 
Paul Arena                       Paul Arena 
 
_________________________________         __________________________________ 
John Butitta        John Butitta 
 
__________________________________       __________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman                                     Joe Hoffman 
  
__________________________________       __________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado                              Jaime Salgado                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
__________________________________       __________________________________ 
Michael Thompson                             Michael Thompson 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 
Winnebago, Illinois this ______ day of _________________________, 2024. 
 
 
                      ________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph V. Chiarelli 

     Chairman of the County Board  
     of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 



PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 





























































































































































Public Safety & 
Judiciary 

Committee 



    Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By: Purchasing Department on behalf of Facilities 

Committee:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date: March 28, 2024 

Resolution Title:  Resolution Renewing the Annual Maintenance Agreement for X-Ray 
Scanners 

County Code:   Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date:  March 28 ,2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:   $34,300 
If not, explain funding source:   
ORG/OBJ/Project Code: Multiple   Budget Impact:   None/Budgeted 

Background Information: Annual maintenance agreement with AutoClear, LLC on seven County 
owned X-Ray machines. The agreement has been annually renewed since 2012. 

 12000-01721 Three X-Ray Scanners Criminal Justice Center $14,700 
 12000-01056 One X-Ray Scanner Juvenile Justice Center $4,900 
 12000-01526 One X-Ray Scanner Adult Probation 526 $4,900  
 12000-27000 Two X-Ray Machines Public Safety Building (Courthouse Complex) $9,800 

MODEL: AC6848   SERIAL # 121025P#235MESM 
MODEL: AC6848   SERIAL # 130122P#08MESM 
MODEL: AC6848   SERIAL # 130124P#09MESM 
MODEL: AC6848   SERIAL # 121025P#236MESM 
MODEL: AC6848   SERIAL # 121107P#253MESM 
MODEL: AC6848   SERIAL # 121107P#252MESM 
MODEL: AC6848   SERIAL # 121106P#249MESM 

Recommendation: Facilities Director recommends approval. This maintenance agreement 
includes two radiation checks and calibrations per year/machine.    

Contract/Agreement: The agreement is for one year. See Resolution Exhibit A.  

Legal Review:  Normal maintenance agreement 

Follow-Up: Facilities Director will complete the annual registration of all building X-Ray 
scanning machines with IEMA.        



County Board:  March 28, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Brad Lindmark 
Submitted by:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

2024 CR

RESOLUTION RENEWING THE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR X-RAY SCANNERS 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago purchased the following seven X-Ray Scanners for 
various security locations within County facilities in 2012 from AutoClear, LLC; and, 

MODEL: AC6848   SERIAL # 121025P#235MESM 
MODEL: AC6848   SERIAL # 130122P#08MESM 
MODEL: AC6848   SERIAL # 130124P#09MESM 
MODEL: AC6848   SERIAL # 121025P#236MESM 
MODEL: AC6848   SERIAL # 121107P#253MESM 
MODEL: AC6848   SERIAL # 121107P#252MESM 
MODEL: AC6848   SERIAL # 121106P#249MESM    

WHEREAS, a one (1) year Platinum Level Maintenance Agreement was included with the 
original purchase and has been renewed annually, providing premier service and unlimited 
technical support, parts, travel expenses of technicians, and two (2) preventive maintenance 
checks with radiation survey (cleaning, adjustments, tightening, and calibrations) to be 
completed on each unit per year; and, 

WHEREAS, proper maintenance for this security equipment is vital to the safety of all 
persons entering a secure County facility, and to ensure compliance with standards specifically 
established by the State of Illinois for this type of equipment; and, 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago would like to renew the AutoClear, LLC Annual 
Maintenance Agreement for each scanner at the Platinum Level rate of FOUR THOUSAND NINE 
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($4,900) per unit, for a total of THIRTY-FOUR THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($34,300); and, 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the AutoClear, LLC Annual Maintenance Agreement, 
Resolution Exhibit A, and recommends renewal; and, 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee has determined that the funding 
 for the aforementioned purchase shall be as follows: 



 

 
12000-01721:    3  X-Ray Machines  $14,700 
12000-01056:               1  X-Ray Machine  $ 4,900 
12000-01526:               1  X-Ray Machine   $ 4,900 
12000-27000:               2  X-Ray Machines  $ 9,800 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that any agreement entered into by the County 
pursuant to the authority granted in this Resolution shall have substantially the same terms as 
those contained in the agreement, which is attached to this Resolution as Resolution Exhibit A. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois that 
the County Facilities Director is hereby directed and authorized to renew the AutoClear, LLC  
Annual Maintenance Agreement with AutoClear, LLC and to issue a purchase order to 
AUTOCLEAR, LLC, 10A BLOOMFIELD AVENUE PINE BROOK, NJ 07058 in the amount of THIRTY-
FOUR THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($34,300) for payment of the one year agreement. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed and 
authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Facilities Director, 
Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, Board Office and County Auditor. 
  



 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
  PUBLIC SAFETY and JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

            
                  

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY  KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

                                                                          JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



AUTOCLEAR, LLC. AGREES TO PROVIDE, AND THE CUSTOMER AGREES TO ACCEPT, MAINTENANCE 

AGREEMENT SERVICES ON THE EQUIPMENT LISTED ABOVE TO THE COVERAGE LEVEL CHOSEN AND THE 

TERMS & CONDITIONS AS OUTLINED ON PAGE TWO (2) OF THIS CONTRACT.  

Pg. 1 of 2 

World Headquarters 

10A Bloomfield Avenue 
Pine Brook, NJ 07058 USA 

Tel.  1.973.276.6000 
Fax. 1.973.227-0832 

info@autoclear.com 

AUTOCLEAR X-RAY INSPECTION SYSTEMS 

ANNUAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

Account: Winnebago County 

Address: 650 West State St. 

Rockford, IL 61101 

Attn: Shawn Franks 

Coverage Level: Platinum Date Issued: 2/2/2024 

Contract Effective Date: 2/1/2024 Contract Expiration Date: 1/31/2025 

Model Serial Number Unit Address* Unit Coverage Price 

6848 121025P#235 $4,900.00 

6848 121025P#236 $4,900.00 

6848 121106P#249 $4,900.00 

6848 121107P#252 $4,900.00 

6848 121107P#253 $4,900.00 

6848 130122P#08 $4,900.00 

6848 130124P#09 $4,900.00 

*If different from billing account address
Contract Total: $34,300.00 

NOTE: As of 04/23/2022, all platinum-level maintenance agreements will include one (1) preventative 

maintenance (PM) service per unit per contract year, unless issues arise with the unit where additional PMs 

are required. 

Customer Signature Position Date 

Accepted by Autoclear, LLC.: Date: 

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



AUTOCLEAR, LLC. AGREES TO PROVIDE, AND THE CUSTOMER AGREES TO ACCEPT, MAINTENANCE 

AGREEMENT SERVICES ON THE EQUIPMENT LISTED ABOVE TO THE COVERAGE LEVEL CHOSEN AND THE 

TERMS & CONDITIONS AS OUTLINED ON PAGE TWO (2) OF THIS CONTRACT.  

Pg. 2 of 2 

World Headquarters 

10A Bloomfield Avenue 
Pine Brook, NJ 07058 USA 

Tel.  1.973.276.6000 
Fax. 1.973.227-0832 

info@autoclear.com 

 AUTOCLEAR ANNUAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

TERMS & CONDITIONS 

Autoclear’s sole obligation is to complete services as defined under the contract terms 

within the stated effective agreement dates. This maintenance agreement does NOT extend to (1) 

damage resulting from accident, misuse, neglect, or improper installation, maintenance, or 

application; (2) damage resulting from elemental or environmental factors including, but not 

limited to, moisture, heat, corrosive materials, abrasives, or pollutants; or (3) damage or loss in 

transit, including transit within the grounds of the initial installation facility. This contract is VOID 

when service or repairs are performed by service personnel not authorized by Autoclear, or when 

any system or part is altered without consent from Autoclear, LLC. This contract is extended only 

to the issued contract holder/end user and is NOT TRANSFERABLE to subsequent users. 

Damage, as defined in this contract, refers to physical harm caused to the X-ray scanning 

system and its external components in such a way as to impair its value, safety, usefulness, or 

normal function, including dings, nicks, dents, misalignment, etc. The following is considered to 

be negligence or abuse of the X-Ray scanner and/or its components: 

• Misuse or abuse of x-ray scanner by the operator. This includes, but is not limited to:

o Cutting/splicing/tearing of any cables or cords

o Removing or damaging any buttons on the X-ray system, including the keyboard

or operator control panel (OCP)

o Liquids coming into contact with mechanical or electronic components

o Cutting/damaging/removing lead curtains or conveyor belt

o Dropping or physical damage to the monitor, OCP, or related components

o Tampering with or removing any components of the X-ray scanner system without

Autoclear’s authorization

• Any damage caused by a 3rd party not authorized or trained by Autoclear, LLC. on how to

operate, troubleshoot, or repair a scanner

• Any damage caused by storage or operation in an area where scanner can be exposed to

rain, snow, sleet, wind, debris, and animals

• Careless movement (banging, collision, excessive force, etc.) or improper storage of

scanner that results in damage

Environmental conditions that are the responsibility of the end-user are considered to be: 

o Excessive heat/moisture/dust where scanner is located

o Unstable or uneven flooring

o Insubstantial or unstable electrical input

For proper usage & storage guidelines, please refer to the Autoclear X-ray Systems User’s Manual. 



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov     

Prepared By:  Marlana Dokken 
Committee:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date: March 28, 2024 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Supporting the Application for Funding of an Integrated Case 

Management Platform for the Winnebago County, Illinois Court System  
County Code:      n/a 
Board Meeting Date: March 28, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?  No  Appropriation Amount: N/A 

If not, explain funding source:   

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A Budget Impact: N/A 

Background Information: 
The County of Winnebago, Illinois has a responsibility to ensure the protection of confidential judicial 
information while providing appropriate access to information to the public, case litigants, attorneys, law 
enforcement services, and other justice providers. The five major stakeholders in the county court system, 
the Winnebago County Illinois Circuit Clerk, State’s Attorney, Public Defender, Court Services and Jury 
Commission, are currently operating under a loosely integrated, out-of-date set of applications and case 
management systems. Under increasing pressure for a faster  justice system and increasing financial stress 
to accomplish more with fewer public resources, integrated justice systems offer a solution.  Integrated 
justice concepts provide the opportunity for all stakeholders and departments to electronically share 
accurate and timely information, while eliminating or significantly reducing the delays and potential 
errors. The deployment of new case management systems for five court stakeholders is a significant 
expense, applying for federal funds may reduce that burden.   

Recommendation:  
Instruct federal lobbyist, Mercury Public Affairs, to submit a Congressionally Directed Spending Request on 
behalf of the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois. 

Contract/Agreement: 
N/A 

Legal Review: 
N/A 

Follow-Up: 
N/A    

http://www.wincoil.gov/


County Board:  March 28, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

2024 CR 
RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE APPLICATION FOR FUNDING OF AN INTEGRATED CASE 
MANAGEMENT PLATFORM FOR THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS COURT SYSTEM  

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois has a responsibility to ensure the 
protection of confidential judicial information while providing appropriate access to information 
to the public, case litigants, attorneys, law enforcement services, and other justice providers; and 

WHEREAS, the five major stakeholders in the county court system, the Winnebago 
County, Illinois Circuit Clerk, State’s Attorney, Public Defender, Court Services and Jury 
Commission, are currently operating under a loosely integrated, out-of-date set of applications 
and case management systems; and 

WHEREAS, integrated justice concepts provide the opportunity for all stakeholders 
and departments to electronically share accurate and timely information, while eliminating 
or significantly reducing delays and potential errors; and 

WHEREAS, the deployment of new case management systems for these five court 
stakeholders is a significant expense so applying for federal funds may reduce that burden; and   

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, recommends supporting an application for funding of an integrated 
case management platform for the Winnebago County, Illinois court system. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to execute, on behalf of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, a Congressionally Directed Spending Request addressing an 
integrated case management platform for the Winnebago County, Illinois court system.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of the Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice 
Initiatives, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor. 



 

 
                                                                             Respectfully Submitted, 

                PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 

 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR  BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR 

 

AARON BOOKER  AARON BOOKER 

 

JEAN CROSBY 

 

 JEAN CROSBY 

 

ANGIE GORAL 

 

 ANGIE GORAL 

 

KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

 KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

TIM NABORS 

 

 TIM NABORS 

 

CHRIS SCROL  CHRIS SCROL 

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



NEW BUSINESS 



ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

Announcements & Communications 
Date: March 28, 2024 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 

County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 

Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory
Commission a letter regarding Byron Station-Integrated Inspection Report
05000454/2023004 and 05000455/2023004.

a. Byron Station – Comprehensive Engineering Team Inspection Report
05000454/2024010 and 05000455/2024010

b. Federal Register/Vo. 89, No. 54/Tuesday, March 19, 2024/Notices
c. Monthly Notice; Applications and Amendments to Facility Operating Licenses and

Combined Licenses Involving No Significant Hazards Considerations

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy Winnebago
County Treasurer the following:

a. Collateralization Report – February 31, 2024
b. Investment Report - as of March 1, 2024
c. Winnebago County Treasurer Bank Balances –February, 2024

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Resolution Adopting Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Policy
	Resolution Setting the Salaries & Other Benefits of Cty. Auditor, Cty. Coroner & Cty. Board Chairman
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Reimbursable Technology Expenditures
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Claim Against Cty. of Winn. entitled Kai McCoy vs. Winn. County
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Claim Against Cty. of Winn. entitled William James vs. Winn. County
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Claim Against Cty. of Winn. entitled Eric Beitel vs. Winn. County
	Zoning Committee
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution Awarding Purchase of X-Ray Equipment for Bomb Squad using CIP 24 Funds
	Resolution Awarding Purchase of Vehicles for Coroner's Office using CIP 24 Funds
	Resolution Awarding Replacement of 2nd Floor Air Handlers at Adult Probation Center using CIP 24 Funds
	Resolution Awarding Replacement of Energy Recovery Ventilation Unit at Adult Probation Center using CIP 23 PSST Funds
	Resolution regarding Emergency Response to the Abandonment of Asylum Seekers in Winn. County
	Public Works Committee
	(24-006) Award of Bid for Mowing & Vegetation Control
	(24-007) Resolution Declaring as Surplus Hwy. Dept. Equipment & Authorizing Sale
	(24-008) Award of Bid for 2024 County General Letting
	(24-009) Resolution Authorizing Appropriation of Motor Fuel Tax Funds for Maintenance at Cty. Hwys.
	(24-010) Award of Bid for 2024 Township Seal Coat Program
	(24-011) Award of Bid for Cherry Valley Township & Village of Cherry Valley for S. Mulford Rd. Resurfacing Project
	(24-012) Resolution Authorizing Phase 1 Engineering Services Agreement with Fehr Graham
	(24-013) Resolution Authorizing Phase II Engineering Services Agreement with Chastain & Associates, LLC
	(24-014) Resolution Supporting Application to Rehabilitate Meridian Rd. Bridge over Pecatonica River
	(24-015) Resolution Supporting Application for Extension of Baxter Rd. Water Main on West Side of I-39
	(24-016) Resolution Supporting Application to Address Per-and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances
	Public Safety & Judiciary Committee
	Resolution Renewing Annual Maintenance Agreement for X-Ray Scanners
	Resolution Supporting Application for Funding of Integrated Case Management Platform for Winn. Cty., IL Court System
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



